
 

AGENDA FOR 
 

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact: Michael Cunliffe 
Direct Line: 0161 253 5399 

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk 
Website:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of Planning Control Committee 

 
Councillors : S Thorpe (Chair), C Boles, D Duncalfe, 

U Farooq, J Harris, M Hayes, B Ibrahim, D Quinn, 
G Staples-Jones, D Vernon and M Walsh 

 

 
Dear Member/Colleague 

 
Planning Control Committee 

 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee 
which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Tuesday, 20 February 2024 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 

briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related 

report should be contacted. 

Notes: https://councilstream.com/burycouncil/3209 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether they 
have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to formally declare 
that interest. 
 

3   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 23RD JANUARY 2024  

(Pages 3 - 4) 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 23rd January 2024 are attached. 

 

4   PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 5 - 128) 

 
Reports attached. 

 

5   DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 129 - 138) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated planning 
decisions since the last meeting of the planning control committee is attached. 

 

6   PLANNING APPEALS  (Pages 139 - 148) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all planning appeal 
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached. 

 

7   URGENT BUSINESS   

 
Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency. 

 



 

 

1 

 

 Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 23 January 2024 

 
 Present: Councillor S Thorpe (in the Chair) 

Councillors C Boles, D Duncalfe, U Farooq, J Harris, M Hayes, 
B Ibrahim, D Quinn, G Staples-Jones, D Vernon and M Walsh 
 

 Also in attendance: Assistant Director (Operations), Bury Council 
 

 Public Attendance: 2 members of the public were present at the meeting. 

   

 
PCC.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

PCC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

PCC.3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 19TH DECEMBER 2023  

 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 19th December 2023 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
PCC.4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to 
applications for planning permission.  

 
There was supplementary information to add in respect of application number 69326 

and 70200. 
 
The Committee heard representations from a speaker and supporter in respect of an 

application submitted. This was limited to three minutes for each speaker. 
 
Delegated decisions: 

 
1. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 
report and any supplementary information submitted subject to all other 
conditions included: 

 
Top Park playing fields, Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9NU 

Creation of 3G Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) with perimeter fencing, new macadam 
hardstanding areas, floodlights, storage container, car park with associated lighting 
and landscaping, single storey extension to an existing pavilion 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 23 January 2024  

 
 

 

2 

 
2. That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

report and any supplementary information submitted with an amended condition 
13 to include Swift bricks, and subject to all other conditions included: 

  
Site of former Waterside, Kay Street, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5PE 

Erection of single building containing 16 no.dwellings and associated car parking; 

Creation of an upgraded vehicular access off Kay Street 
 

PCC.5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 

planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last 
meeting of the Planning Control Committee. 

 
Delegated decision: 

 

That the report and appendices be noted.  
 

PCC.6  PLANNING APPEALS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 

planning and enforcement appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning 
Control Committee.  
 
Delegated decision: 

 

That the report and appendices be noted.  
 

PCC.7  SECTION 106 OBLIGATIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted outlining the 

contributions made by S106 obligations between the 1st April 2022 and the 31st 
March 2023 and summarised agreements that are outstanding. 
 
Delegated decision:  

 

That the report be noted.  
 

PCC.8  URGENT BUSINESS  

 
No urgent business was reported. 

 
 
COUNCILLOR S THORPE 

Chair  

 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00pm and ended at 7.50pm) 

 
 

Page 4



  
 

 
Title 
 

 
Planning Applications 

To: 
 

Planning Control Committee 

On: 
 

20 February 2024 

By: 
 

Development Manager 

Status: 
 

For Publication 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the 
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved. 
 
My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports. 
 
This report has the following implications 
 
Township Forum/ Ward: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Policy: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Resources: 
 

Not generally applicable. 

Equality Act 2010:  All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and 
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for: 
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and person who do not share it; 
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.    
    
Human Rights:  All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
 
Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the 
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments. 
 
Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a 
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include 
a person's home, and other land and business assets. 
 
In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and 
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon 
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is 
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the 
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council 
under the Town & Country Planning Acts. 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on 
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the 
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions. 
 
 
 
Development Manager 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith. 
2. Certificates relating to the ownership. 
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties. 
4. Responses from Consultees. 
 
 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT 
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE. 
 

Page 6



 
01  Township Forum - Ward:  Prestwich - St Mary's App No.   69971 
 
  Location: 509-511 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3AJ 
  Proposal: Change of use from snooker hall (Use Class F2) to cabaret venue/bar - 

drinking establishment (Sui Generis); installation of bifold doors to front 
elevation. Upgrading existing steps, installation of access ramp and 
balustrade to provide level access to the front of the building.  
 

  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Prestwich - Sedgley App No.   70340 
 
  Location: 65 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DB 
  Proposal: Change of use of ground floor from shop to restaurant (Use Class E) with 

opening times 07.30 - 21.00; canopy at front and installation of an external 
flue pipe at the side/rear (Temporary consent for 12 months) 

  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
03  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East App No.   70342 
 
  Location: 47 Fairfield Drive, Bury, BL9 7SL 
  Proposal: Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey side 

extension  
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
04  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth App No.   70367 
 
  Location: 210 Turks Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3NW 
  Proposal: Single storey extension at side 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
05  Township Forum - Ward:  Prestwich - Holyrood App No.   70011 
 
  Location: 3 no. sites on Sandgate Road, 2 no. sites on Heys Road and 1 no. site on 

Heywood Road, Willow Road, Fairfax Road and St Margarets Road 
  Proposal: Erection of poles, TPK’s and Flat panels to create an Eruv on 9 no. sites 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
06  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - East App No.   70136 
 
  Location: 21 Church Street East, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2PG 
  Proposal: Change of use of ground floor to 7 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation 

(Sui Generis); Single storey rear extension; Alterations to include new 
windows and doors 

Page 7



  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
07  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - East App No.   70256 
 
  Location: 36 Irwell Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1LR 
  Proposal: Change of use from dwellinghouse (Class C3) to children's residential care 

home (Class C2) 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Page 8



  
 
Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's Item   01 

 
Applicant:  Kensingtons 
 
Location: 509-511 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3AJ 

 
Proposal: Change of use from snooker hall (Use Class F2) to cabaret venue/bar - drinking 

establishment (Sui Generis); installation of bifold doors to front elevation. Upgrading 
existing steps, installation of access ramp and balustrade to provide level access to 
the front of the building.  
 

 
Application Ref:   69971/Full Target Date:  01/11/2023 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application relates to a building attached to Prestwich Liberal Club which was 
previously occupied by Riley's Snooker Club and Bar. The building had been vacant since 
the end of June 2020 and re-opened in December 2023 as 'Icons', a drinking establishment. 
It is located opposite the M&S Food store. Adjacent to the north of the property is a 
Solicitors Office and to the rear of the property is a Bowling Green with residents 
surrounding it.  
 
The site is closely located to the main crossroads of Fairfax Road and Chester Street and 
fronts onto Bury New Road.  There is a small area of hardstanding at the front which is 
directly accessed off the main road.  A narrow area along the northern elevation exists 
where a first floor external staircase exists. 
 
The site is located on the edge of the area allocated within the adopted Unitary 
Development Plan as Prestwich Town Centre. 
 
Retrospective planning permission is sought to change the use of the building by opening a 
Cabaret Club/ Bar (Drinking establishment) on the ground floor of the building, utilise the 
Basement area to create associated women and men's toilet facilities, and retain a Cellar 
area.  The first floor of the building is proposed to remain vacant. 
 
Retrospective permission is also sought for changes to the front elevation with the insertion 
of bi-folding doors at ground floor level, the installation of a disabled access ramp along the 
front elevation, the insertion of a fire escape door at ground floor level in the north facing 
side elevation of the building, which overlooks the rear yard area of Mann's Solicitors, no. 
513 Bury New Road and for a 1.5m high fence to enclose a refuse storage area along the 
shared boundary with the Liberal Club. 
 
The proposed opening hours for the Cabaret Club/ Bar are: 
 
11:00 hours - 00:00 hours Monday to Friday; 
11:00 hours - 02:00 hours Saturday 
11:00 hours - 00:00 hours Sunday, Bank and Public Holidays.  
 
Members should note that the proposals initially sought permission for a raised external 
seating area across the frontage of the property.  This aspect has been removed from the 

Page 9



proposals due to concerns raised by the Highway Authority over the loss of the sole loading 
and servicing area for the property/ business, and the impact this would have on highway 
safety. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
40746 - Halo illuminated fascia signage to front elevation - Approved, 24/06/2003 
 
48928 - Proposed external timber decked smoking area - Refused 20/12/2007  
 
69318 - Prior approval for proposed change of use from Commercial (Class E) to 9 no. 
Apartments (Class C3) - Prior Approval Required and Refused, 30/03/2023 
 
69311 - External works to change the existing fenestration, including new door and 
windows, a Balcony at the front and repainting of the building -  Received - 11 April 2023   
Submitted by a different applicant - Under consideration. 
 
Publicity 
The application has been advertised by Site Notice and 58 surrounding properties have 
been notified by letter. 
 
7 representations have been received primarily from occupiers on Bury New Road and 
Kingswood Road who raise the following concerns: 
 
Proposed Use 

• Feels that a Cabaret venue will not fit in with the village of Prestwich. 

• No benefit to public, other than unsubstantiated claim that it would employ 5 full time 
and 5 part time staff and the ability for up to 250 customers to stay out until 2am. 

• Questions whether the Council should be supporting a drinking establishment. 

• Asserts this proposal would be more suited in the city centre, not a quiet, nice leafy area 
like Prestwich. 

 
Amenity concerns 

• Concerned about the proposed opening hours - up to 2am on Saturdays.  

• Concerned about noise. 

• Concerned about building being able to accommodate up to 250 people and the issues 
that may occur, such as noise, disturbance and taxis parking all over. 

• Concerned that customers leaving the application site from midnight to 2am would lead 
to anti-social behaviour in and around the area and urinating in the streets. 

• Asserts the bi-folding doors would create noise pollution into the street. 

• Concerned about people smoking, vaping and drinking to the front of the building and 
the effect this would have on pedestrians using the pavement. 

• Asserts that the applicants statement that the Bowling Green will provide a significant 
buffer" for residents is disingenuous as they consider it is not a credible buffer. 

 
Highway Safety 

• Concerned about where taxis would park given the application building is one building 
down from the traffic lighted crossroads of Fairfax Road and Chester Street and the 
impact they would have on the safety of the local highway network. 

• Raises concerns about the impact on the free-flow of traffic and its proximity to the 
junction. 

• Concerned there is no parking and assert this would take place on Kingswood Road and 
surrounding roads resulting in dangerous conditions and leave nowhere for local 
residents to park. 

 

Page 10



Other 

• States the Council is currently planning a wholesale redevelopment of Prestwich with 
the underlying rationale that they want to make Prestwich an attractive place where the 
community can work and live and asserting Prestwich does not really need another 
reason to provide a place to eat and drink into the early hours of the morning. 

• Advises a smoking area was refused back in 2007 for the same building, that would 
have had less of an impact, so it should be refused for those grounds. 

• Raised concern that the proposed use is/ was advertising the business would be open 
on the 01 December, despite this planning application not being determined. 

 
A letter from Christian Wakeford MP has also written in requesting Officers and Planning 
Committee to particularly consider;  

• The bi-folding doors on to a balcony at the front of the building and whether this will 
generate undue noise pollution to residents in the area,  

• The times the business wants to close at the weekend; and, 

• The problems that may arise from traffic when the business closes, including noise and 
parking problems for residents and traffic obstruction for users of Bury New Road. 

 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - Initially recommended refusal of the application on highway safety 
grounds as the proposals initially sought a raised external seating area which would have 
likely lead to vehicles parking and carrying out manoeuvres on the adjacent A56 Bury New 
Road, to the detriment of the free flow of traffic and road safety.  In addition, they initially 
objected due to the initially proposed seating area resulting in a narrower pavement area fir 
pedestrians to use, close to the footway crossing that exists outside the Liberal Club. 
 
Since the external raised seating area has been removed from the application proposal, the 
Highway Authority has removed its objections to the proposed development and advises it 
has no objections. 
 
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objections in principle, subject to th a 
condition being imposed requiring any necessary extraction/ ventilation equipment to be 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to any installation.  
Colleagues in Pollution Control also initially recommended that the hours of use for the  
outside seating area - no longer proposed - be restricted.   
 
Waste Management - No objections. 
 
Greater Manchester Police - design for security - No objections, subject to security 
measures being implemented. 
 
Conservation Officer - No objections. 
 
Pre-start Conditions - No pre-commencement conditions are necessary. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
S1/2 Shopping in Other Town Centres 
S2/4 Control of Non-Retail Uses in All Other Areas 
S2/6 Food and Drink 
EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT4 New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 11



NPPG National Planning Policy Guide 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations, including relevant policies in the emerging Places for Everyone Joint 
Development Plan.  
 
Principle of Development 
The application site is located on Bury New Road on the edge of Prestwich Town Centre, as 
defined by the Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP).   
  
The proposal is for a change of use from a snooker hall to a cabaret venue/bar (drinking 
establishment) which is defined by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) as a 
main town centre use.   
  
It is considered appropriate to consider paragraph 92 of the NPPF which states that 
planning authorities should apply a sequential test for main town centre uses which are 
neither in an existing centre nor in accordance with an up-to-date plan.   Main town centre 
uses should be located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if suitable 
sites are not available (or expected to become available within a reasonable period) should 
out of centre sites be considered. 
  
Paragraph 92 of the NPPF goes on to state that when considering edge of centre and out of 
centre proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to 
the town centre.   
 
The applicant has submitted a 'retail sequential test' to determine whether there are any 
alternative sites within Prestwich Town Centre, as defined within the UDP.  The applicant 
has demonstrated that there are no alternative suitable sites within Prestwich Town Centre. 
 
The application site is located on the edge of the defined Town Centre, where similar 
drinking establishments exist,  between a Solicitors Office and Prestwich Liberal Club and 
is located directly opposite the M&S Food store, and is therefore considered to be in an 
accessible location adjacent to Prestwich Town Centre. 
 
The proposal to use the ground and basement floors of the building for the proposed 
Cabaret Club/ drinking establishment would support the vibrancy and vitality of Prestwich 
Town Centre and accordingly the proposal accords with the requirements of paragraph 92 
of the NPPF and the locational requirements of UDP policies S1/2 - Shopping in Other 
Town Centres, S2/4 - Control of Non-Retail Uses in All Other Areas and policy S2/6 - Food 
and Drink. The principle of this proposal also does not give rise to any conflict with the 
emerging Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan (PfE) policies and is therefore 
acceptable in principle. 
 
The effect on the amenity of nearby residents and businesses 
UDP Policy S2/6 - Food and Drink - states the Council will consider the amenity of nearby 
residents by reason of noise, smell, litter and opening hours in the assessment of planning 
proposals. 
 
There are residential properties to the north, west and southwest of the application site.  
The proposal sits between two commercial properties and backs on to a bowling green. 
 
The proposed hours of opening are: 

Page 12



 
11:00 hours - 00:00 hours Monday to Friday; 
11:00 hours - 02:00 hours Saturday 
11:00 hours - 00:00 hours Sunday, Bank and Public Holidays.  
 
Noise and disturbance have been raised as a concern by nearby residents. A Noise Impact 
Assessment (NIA) has been submitted during the course of this application, which has 
considered the noise from the proposed development, including: 
 
- Noise break-out from dance/performance space; 
- Noise break-in to the adjacent attached property through the party wall; 
- Noise egress from the external seating area; which is no longer proposed, and, 
- Noise from patrons and taxis attending the venue;  
 
The existing ambient noise climate was noted within the NIA to be dominated by traffic to 
Bury New Road. 
 
Noise break-out from dance/ performance space 
The NIA states that the external walls of the building are constructed from brick (likely to be 
double brick) and the room would be insulated using timber studs supporting a plasterboard 
layer with mineral wall in the cavity, which would prevent any significant noise break out. 
The applicant has confirmed the above has been carried out. 
 
Notwithstanding the insulation, there is a concern that noise would escape through the fire 
escape doors, which are located on the north elevation facing the land to the rear of the 
Solicitors at 513 Bury New Road. The NIA considers any noise breakout from this fire door 
would be predominantly in-audible at the nearest residential property.  
 
Noise Impact on the adjoining Liberal Club 
Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states planning policies and decisions should ensure that new 
development can be integrated effectively with existing businesses and community facilities 
(such as places of worship, pubs, music venues and sports clubs) and also states, existing 
businesses and facilities should not have unreasonable restrictions placed on them as a 
result of development permitted after they were established. It states that where the 
operation of an existing business or community facility could have a significant adverse 
effect on new development (including changes of use) in its vicinity, the applicant (or 'agent 
of change') should be required to provide suitable mitigation before the development has 
been completed. 
 
The bar and snooker lounge within the adjoining Liberal Club are located next to the 
proposed dance/performance space.  The two would be separated by the party wall. 
 
Based on measurements conducted within a live music venue with a full band playing 
(overall noise level of 101 dBA), it has been calculated within the NIA an equivalent noise 
level of 48 dBA within the Liberal Clubs snooker lounge.  At 48 dBA, noise through the 
party wall would be expected to be masked either by the playing of moderate background 
music or by the ambient atmosphere caused by patrons talking. The Noise Report 
submitted also considers noise levels within the proposed dance/performance area.  
 
The existing separating wall construction of brick with plasterboard and mineral wool is 
considered to prevent any significant harm to the existing Liberal Club and is thus 
considered to be acceptable by Officers. 
 
Noise and disturbance from patrons & taxis attending the venue 
The application site is located on Bury New Road, principal highway within the borough, 

Page 13



which is a busy through route, and the existing ambient noise is dominated by road traffic. 
As such, the noise generated by taxis driving to and from the proposed development would 
be insignificant when compared to existing noise levels and would be indistinguishable from 
general traffic noise passing the application site. 
 
In regards to noise from patrons, it is noted from the noise survey results that the ambient 
noise climate to the front of the application site (where the entrance to the development is) 
is typically LAeq,T 70 dBA during the opening times of the development.  The background 
noise level is typically circa LA90 60 dB. Officers consider this level would not be significant 
in this location, and it is therefore considered, noise from individuals talking as they walk to 
and from the venue would be predominantly masked by traffic noise. 
 
In relation to the disturbance and anti-social concerns raised within the representations, 
Greater Manchester Police has reviewed the proposals and have raised no objections to the 
proposals. Moreover, since the business stared operating at the beginning of December 
only a single complaint has been received by the Council's Environmental Health, Public 
Protection team regarding noise disturbance and anti-social behaviour.  On this basis, it 
would be unreasonable of Officers to recommend the application be refused due to this one 
incident, particularly as the Alcohol Licence granted by the Council can be reviewed if the 
need arises.   
 
Extraction Facilities 
No extraction facilities are proposed as part of this application, however, the submitted NIA 
suggests that an extraction facility may be likely.  As extraction and ventilation facilities can 
generate noise and odours, and this site is in close proximity to nearby residents, a planning  
condition is recommended, requiring details of the noise and odour impact of any extraction 
facilities, as well as its/ their visual appearance, to be submitted and approved in writing 
prior to any extraction facilities being installed. 
 
Opening Hours 
The proposal seeks to open from 11:00 - 00:00 Sunday to Friday and from 11:00 - 02:00 on 
Saturdays.  Officers are satisfied that the conclusions of the Noise Impact Assessment can 
be relied upon and therefore noise from the venue would not cause harm to the amenity of 
nearby residents. The proposed opening hours are therefore considered to be acceptable. 
 
To conclude all of the above, it is considered that any noise generated from the proposed 
use would not cause significant harm to the amenity of nearby residential occupiers.  The 
proposal therefore accords with this aspect of Policy S2/6 of the UDP.  It is also clear that 
the proposal would integrate with the existing Liberal Club, an existing business and 
community facility, without the Liberal Club having unreasonable restrictions placed on them 
as a result of the development proposed. The proposal is therefore considered to accord 
with paragraph 193 of the NPPF and Policy S2/6 of the Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Design and Visual Amenity 
UDP Policy EN1/1 - Visual Amenity, and UDP Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, 
both consider the impact proposals have on visual amenity. The NPPF and National Design 
Guide also emphasis the importance of seeking well-designed proposals. 
 
A smoking area and raised decked area at the front of the building was refused back in 
2007 on visual amenity grounds and due to the proposal not providing satisfactory disabled 
access. One of the representations received asserts the proposal should be refused for 
those grounds. This previous refusal is a material planning consideration so will be taken 
into account in the assessment of this proposal.  
 
Since the previous planning refusal, the National Planning Policy Framework has been 

Page 14



introduced. The NPPF supports well connected Town Centre uses  which would contribute 
to the vitality and vibrancy of Prestwich Town Centre. 
   
This proposal seeks to change the ground floor portion of the front of the building by 
inserting bi-folding doors. This will provide a modern frontage to the building whilst retaining 
the double doors present at either end of the front elevation.  This would be viewed as a 
modern, yet sympathetic addition to the building, which would sit in the street scene 
comfortably. 
 
The proposal also seeks to install a disabled access ramp that is proposed along the 
frontage of the building.  This is considered to be suitably designed for its intended purpose 
and would not appear intrusive within the street scene. These amended retrospective 
proposals also seek to erect a 1.5m high fence to screen the refuse storage area.  This 
amendments are considered to be acceptable visually. 
 
As part of these proposals, a 1.8m high boundary fence located on the shared boundary 
with Manns Solicitors which would reduce in height from the front of the application building 
and the back edge of the pavement is proposed. This height is also considered to be 
acceptable within the street scene.  However, when recently visiting the site it was 
apparent that the area of the boundary fence located between the edge of the front 
elevation and the rear boundary of the site exceeded 1.8 metres in height. This length of 
fence is approximately 2.4 - 2.6 metres in height.  The height of the current fence feels 
overbearing and as part of this fence is visible in views from the street scene it also appears 
visually dominant within the street scene.  As a result, Officers have contacted the 
applicant to advise the current fence needs to be reduced in height to that shown on the 
submitted plans - 1.8 metres, within 3 months of the date of decision of this application.  A 
condition is therefore recommended to secure this. 
 
Taking the above into account, combined with the proposals resulting in the re-occupation 
of a vacant building and would provide an active frontage to the building, the visual impact 
of the proposals would not cause demonstrable harm to either the host building or the street 
scene.  The proposals are therefore considered to accord with UDP Policies EN1/1 and 
EN1/2 and the NPPF. 
 
Highway Safety 
UDP Policy HT4 requires new development to have a satisfactory level of parking and 
servicing provision. 
 
The site is located on the A56 Bury New Road, close to the crossroad junction with Chester 
Street and Fairfax Road.  Bury New Road is one of the boroughs priority roads which 
provides a direct route to the M60.  
 
There are pedestrian control barriers across part of the frontage of the application site, 
which are located close to a pedestrian crossing. There is a hardstanding at the front of the 
property, which slopes upwards towards the entrance.  The area of the frontage closest to 
no. 513 Bury New Road is served by a dropped kerb.  
 
On the existing area of hardstanding at the frontage of the property, the proposed 
development seeks to provide a disabled access ramp and an enlarge the enclosed refuse 
storage area.   
 
It is evident from aerial imagery, street scene photography and Officer site visits to 
Prestwich that refuse storage areas have been sited at either end of the property's frontage 
over the years. Most recently, the refuse storage area was contained within a fenced 
enclosure against the shared boundary of the Liberal Club. This proposal seeks to extend 

Page 15



the current storage area and therefore refuse storage is still to be along the shared 
boundary of the site with the Liberal Club. 
 
It is also evident that vehicles accessing the site have either entered the site in a forward 
gear or reversed onto the site from the highway.  The existing hardstanding offers 
insufficient space for drivers to enter and leave the site in a forward gear without 
undertaking a number of vehicular movements.  
 
The proposed access ramp would provide access  for those who need a level route of 
access into the building and would thus accord with UDP Policy HT5/1 - Access for those 
with special needs. 
 
In terms of the refuse storage area, both Highways and the Council's Waste Management 
team has raised no objections to the proposal as the authorised use also stored their waste 
to the front of the property and serviced the building from the same frontage.   
 
Overall, due to the property already having an autthorised use as a Snooker Club and Bar, 
the proposed use would not be materially different in terms of how the building is serviced 
and deliveries are dropped off.  On this basis, there are no reasons which would justify 
refusal of this proposal on highway safety grounds. 
 
Waste Management and Servicing 
This property has a severely constrained curtilage and the previous business occupying the 
building had their refuse storage area in the same place it is evident on photographic 
imagery and from visiting this site prior to submission of this application,  that the proposed 
refuse storage area is in the same place as the previous use, albeit, it will occupy a larger 
area.  There is sufficient space along the shared boundary to accommodate the needs of 
the business.  The applicants have confirmed they will utilise a private waste collection firm 
to service the proposed use. 
 

The property has an authorised commercial use which contained a bar.  Furthermore, the 
site is also within a highly accessible location on a main bus route and within walking 
distance of the Metrolink stop. In addition, amendments submitted have sought to address 
the original concerns raised by the Highway Authority and accordingly deliveries and 
servicing to the business would remain as it was when Rileys Snooker Club was in 
operation. On this basis, Officers consider it would be unreasonable to refuse this 
application on highway safety grounds. 
 
Conclusion 

The commercial use of this building as a Snooker Club and Bar could re-commence at any 
time without the need for planning permission and this is a strong fallback position that 
weighs in favour of these proposals.  The proposal seeks to create a drinking 
establishment/ Cabaret Club that is well connected to Prestwich Town Centre and the public 
transport network available in Prestwich.  The proposal is considered to be a main town 
centre use, as defined within the NPPF, and therefore the principle of development is 
acceptable. 
 
Neighbouring residents have raised particular concern about noise and disturbance. The 
mitigation measures identified within the Noise Impact Assessment would minimise any 
impacts the proposed development would have on the amenity of nearby residents. It is also 
noted that the Council's Environmental Protection team have received only one objection to 
noise from customers standing at the side of the property, since the opened at the 
beginning of December. 
 
Turning to highway safety, the property has an established commercial use that could 

Page 16



re-commence at any time.  It is clear that Riley's was a bar as well as a Snooker Club so 
the bar element of Riley's would have resulted in supplies and servicing taking place at the 
site. The permitted authorised is a strong fallback position that should not be ignored. 
Combined with the application site also being positioned in a highly accessible location, it is 
considered that there are no justifiable reasons to resist the application on highway safety 
grounds.  
 
Given all of the above, subject to the recommended planning conditions, the proposal is 
considered to be acceptable. The proposal would thus comply with the above policies of the 
Local Plan, the emerging Places for Everyone Plan and the NPPF. Therefore, in 
accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, the proposal 
merits approval and it is thus recommended that the application be conditionally approved. 
 
Response to objectors 

• The principle of the proposed use has been addressed in the report above.  
 

• The issues relating to noise, disturbance, taxis, highway safety, and parking have been 
addressed in the report above.  

 

• The issue that the proposed development would not fit in with the village of Prestwich 
has been addressed in the report above. 

 

• It is clear that the proposed development would provide employment opportunities. 
 

• The concern relating to smoking and vaping causing harm to pedestrians using the 
pavement is not a material planning consideration. 

 

• The issue that the application site was advertising that it would open on the 01 
December is not material consideration as retrospective planning permission enables 
applicants to apply retrospectively for proposals. 

 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development hereby approved shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the following approved plans and documents, but only in respect of those matters 
not reserved for later approval, as listed below and at the end of this decision 
notice unless required otherwise by this decision or its attached conditions: 
This permission relates to the following plans: 
 
Drawing no. 547 - 400: Location Plan;  

Page 17



Drawing no. 547 - 401: Block Plan; 
Drawing no.  547-402 Rev. G: Proposed Ground Floor and Site Plan;  
Drawing no. 547-402 Rev. A: Proposed Basement Plan; 
Drawing no. 547-403: Proposed First Floor Plan; 
Drawing no. 547-403 Rev. G: Proposed Elevations; and, 
Drawing no. 547-404 Rev. D: Proposed Fence Elevation & Bin Store Detail 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
development in accordance with the policies contained within the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

2. The premises shall only be open for trade or business between 11:00 hours and 
00:00 hours Monday to Friday,  11:00 hours - 02:00 hours on Saturday and 
between 11:00 hours and 00:00 hours on Sundays, Bank Holidays and Public 
Holidays. 
 
Reason: To limit the potential for noise generation during unsocial hours and to 
prevent nuisance arising in order to safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of 
surrounding residential properties in accordance with Policies S2/4 – Control of 
Non-Retail Uses in All Other Areas, and S2/6 – Food and Drink of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

3. The noise attenuation measures identified in the Noise Assessment Impact 
Assessment, dated 03 November 2023, carried out by Philip Dunbavin Acoustics 

Ltd, Report Reference Number J004657-7404-TD-01 shall be implemented in 
accordance with the details in the report before the approved use commences. 
The duly implemented attenuation measures shall be retained as such thereafter 
as long as the site is in operation.   
 
Reason: To ensure the implementation of appropriate noise attenuation measures 
to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties, in accordance 
with Policies EN7/1 - Noise Pollution and S2/6 - Food and Drink of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.    

 

4. Notwithstanding any approved details, any system required for the extraction and 
filtration of odours shall only be installed in accordance with a scheme which has 
first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall include:  
 

(i) details the siting, design and finish of any external plant and/or flue(s);  
(ii) (ii) manufacturer’s operating instructions; and  
(iii) (iii) a programme of equipment servicing/maintenance. The system 

shall thereafter be installed in accordance with the duly approved 
scheme and the extraction/ventilation equipment shall be operated, 
maintained and where necessary repaired in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions and programme of equipment 
servicing/maintenance. 

 
Reason: In order to ensure the efficient dispersal of any odours emanating from 
the premises in the interests of the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and to 
ensure that any ventilation flues/ducting can be accommodated without detriment 
to the character and appearance of the host building and surrounding area in 
accordance with the requirements of EN7/1 – Atmospheric Pollution, EN7/2 – 

Page 18



Noise Pollution and S2/6- Food and Drink of the Bury Unitary Development Plan 
and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

5. No seating shall occur outside the premises. 
 
Reason: To ensure the servicing area at the front of the property remains free of 
obstructions to allow services and deliveries to be made off the adopted highway, 
in the intrests of highway safety. 

 

6. Within 3 months of the date of this decision, the part of the fence on the shared 
boundary with no. 135 Bury New Road located from the front elevation of the 
application site which extends towards the rear of the site shall be reduced in 
height to 1.8 metres. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the street scene, in accordance with 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design - of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396 

Page 19



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69971

509-511 Bury New Road, 
Prestwich

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

1

3

5
0
5

4
9
9

5
1
1

5
1
9

Club

5
0
9

1

24

20

5
0
7

ESS

1 to 9

21

Church Mews

1

19

Bowling Green

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

KINGSWOOD ROAD

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

STR
EET

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

C
H
ESTER

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
IR

E
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

JA
M

E
S
 S

T

94.8m

93.6m

7

4
1

2

3

5

6

8

10

11

9

Viewpoints

Page 20



69971 

Photo 1: Before 

 

 

Photo 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 21



69971 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 

 Page 22



69971 

Photo 5 

 

69971 

Photo 6 

 
Page 23



69971 

Photo 7 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



69971 

Photo 8 

 

Photo 9 

 

 

 

Page 25



69971 

Photo 10 

 

Photo 11 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



Page 27



4
9
2

5
0
7

Club

B
U

R
Y

 N
E

W
 R

O
A

D

Office

New bifold doors to be installed in

place of existing window.

New bifold door to be

installed in place of

existing window. Allow

for fixed rail to bifold to

ensure access is

restricted to ramp.

B
ar

 
Ki

tc
he

n

D
D

A

D
an

ce
flo

or

S
ta

ge

U
P

U
P

U
P

D
re

ss
in

g

R
o
o
m

D
in

in
g 

UP

E
sc

a
p
e

L
o
b
b
y

New FD30 door with

push bar handle.
Stairs formed internally

to allow for level access

out of the building.

UP

New 1800mm high

fire rated timber

fence formed from

close boarded

panels with gate as

shown.

New lower section

of fencing. 1300mm

high timber fence

formed from close

boarded panels

Existing Pedestrian Crossing

Existing Pedestrian Guard Rail

Existing Pedestrian Guard Rail

Existing Pedestrian Guard Rail

Existing Pedestrian Guard Rail

Proposed upgrade of bin store in

existing position. Proposed 1.5m

close boarded fence with double

gate to form bin store.

Proposed access ramp and steps

to front to provide level access

into building. Steps and ramp to

be formed from tarmac and steel

balustrade to perimeter.

240
240

1100

1100

B

A

C

D

North

S

EW

All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by

contractor prior to commencement of works. Any

variations must be reported to JSA Design.

All information hereon in is the copyright of JSA Design.

Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written

permission from JSA Design.

0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5m

SCALE
5.0

1:50

Drawing Title

Project Title

Drawing No.

Date

Drawn

Scale

Rev.

Checked

Status

Size

Client

JSA DESIGN

547 - 402G

Aug 2023 PLANNING

EM JS

1:50 A0

Proposed Ground Floor & Site Plan

Ikons

511 Bury New Rd, Prestwich, Manchester

M25 3AJ

KENSINGTONS

A Addition of fire escape to rear right

elevation and bin storage.

17.10.23

C Revisions following feedback from

planning officer.

06.11.23

D Proposed external area cut back to

provide parking and prevent vision

restrictions from road.

09.11.23

E Drawing updated to include pavement

hatch and pedestrian guard rail.

Pedestrian crossing labeled.

21.11.23

F Removal of external decking as per

clients request.

20.12.2023

G Location arrows added to plan.18.01.2024

P
age 28



Page 29



LEVEL 0

LEVEL 1

3400

LEVEL ROOF

6300

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION A PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION B

New bifold doors to be installed to

each side of existing entrance

door in place of existing windows.

Allow for fixed rail to bifold on

RHS to ensure access is

restricted to ramp.

New 1.8m close boarded fence to

boundary with a lower 1.3m

section to front.

Proposed access ramp and steps

to front to provide level access

into building. Steps and ramp to

be formed from tarmac and steel

balustrade to perimeter.

Proposed upgrade of bin store in

existing position. Proposed 1.5m

close boarded fence with double

gate to form bin store.

1
8

0
0

1
1

0
0

1
3

0
0

1
5

0
0

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION C

1600

New opening to

previously blocked up

opening to form fire

escape route. New FD30

door with push bar

handle.

1
8

0
0

1
5

0
0

Proposed upgrade of

bin store in existing

position. Proposed 1.5m

close boarded fence

with double gate to form

bin store.

Drawing Title

Project Title

Drawing No.

Date

Drawn

Scale

Rev.

Checked

Status

Size

Client

JSA DESIGN

547 - 403G

Aug 2023 PLANNING

RR JS

1:100 A1 

Proposed Elevations

Ikons

511 Bury New Rd, Prestwich, Manchester

M25 3AJ

KENISINGTONS

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8m

SCALE

1:100

9 10
All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by

contractor prior to commencement of works. Any

variations must be reported to JSA Design.

All information hereon in is the copyright of JSA Design.

Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written

permission from JSA Design.

A Addition of fire escape to rear right

elevation.

17.10.23

B External fire escape staircase removed

from elevation.

08.11.23

C Proposed external area cut back to

provide parking and prevent vision

restrictions from road.

09.11.23

D Alterations to title block.09.11.23

E Amendments following clients request

to remove external decking

20.12.2023

F Amendments to drawing titles.18.01.2024

G Dimension added to the bin store fence18.01.2024

P
age 30



PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION C

1600

New opening to

previously blocked up

opening to form fire

escape route. New FD30

door with push bar

handle.

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION D

New opening to

previously blocked up

opening to form fire

escape route. New FD30

door with push bar

handle.New 1.8m high close

boarded fence to

boundary.

1
3

0
0

1
8

0
0

New 1.3m high close

boarded fence to

boundary.

1
5

0
0

1
5

0
0

Proposed upgrade of

bin store in existing

position. Proposed 1.5m

close boarded fence

with double gate to form

bin store.

Drawing Title

Project Title

Drawing No.

Date

Drawn

Scale

Rev.

Checked

Status

Size

Client

JSA DESIGN

547 - 404D

Aug 2023 PLANNING

EM JS

1:100 A1 

Proposed Fence Elevation &

Bin Store Detail

Ikons

511 Bury New Rd, Prestwich, Manchester

M25 3AJ

KENISINGTONS

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8m

SCALE

1:100

9 10

All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by

contractor prior to commencement of works. Any

variations must be reported to JSA Design.

All information hereon in is the copyright of JSA Design.

Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written

permission from JSA Design.

A Proposed fence cut back to provide

prevent vision restrictions to road.

09.11.23

B Amendments following clients request20.12.2023

C Proposed fence sizes amended and

drawing titles.

18.01.2024

D Proposed fence sizes amended19.01.2024

P
age 31



�������������	�
���������

����������

������

����� !!"

#�$%�

&%!��

&%!��

��

��

�'

�(

�)

�*

+ +

+

+

+

+

+

+

+ +

+

+

+

+

+

,


,


,


-�..��

�(

+

+

+

+

/0

/0

/0

/0

/0

/0

/0

12

12

12

12

12
12 12

12

34

�5

����	�
���+6�	��7+�
����

8�9�:��
�; ���<=�><�?<:@�9�=���AB�C��9A�D�9>C�><B��>�E�<�F�?:<@����@@�C>GA

=���C;����<=�?<:�9���CC�:H�C�:IB��C;
(; ���<=�><�?<:@�9�=�?B:���C��J���<::BA<:�>K:<GDK������:�=B>K����A<<:C

�9A�=���C;
); ���<=�><�?<:@�9�=�����>:B���GJE<�:A
*; ���<=�><�?<:@�9�=�C><:�;

8�9>C
�; ���<=�?<:�
L �G���A��<:�>B<9C
L �<:@�9�=�C<?>�=<<A��GEB����CHC>�@�><�:���BI��J�B9>�?B9BCK;
L 
�=�C�9B>�:H=�:��B9��GAB9D�G:B9��C��9A�J�A�C>���=�CKE�CB9C;
L 
�=�?G���K�BDK>�=����>B�B9D�E�KB9A�G:B9��C
L 
�=��M(�K�BDK>�=����>B�B9D;
L 
�=�9<9NC�BJ�A��<:�>BI��>B���?�<<:B9D;
L 
�=�����CC<:B�C
L 
�=��O>:��>
L 
�=��9>BPG��E:�CC�=�����BDK>C
L 
�=��BDK>B9D�<9��7��C�9C<:C
L 
�=�E:B����E:���><�><B��>C�><�B9��GA��@B::<:C��E<I��I�9B>H;

�AB�C
'; ���<=�?<:�
L �G���A��<:�>B<9C
L �<:@�9�=�C<?>�=<<A��GEB����CHC>�@�><�:���BI��J�B9>�?B9BCK;
L 
�=��Q8�7���CHC>�@�=B>K�J�B9>�A�?B9BCK;
L �<:@�9�=�I�9B>H�G9B>��<9C>:G�>�A�<?�CM=�?:�@�=<:F�><�:���BI���
@�:E����??��>�R�:CB>����<G9>�:><J;��<�E��?G:>K�:�A�>�B��A;
L 
�=�C�9B>�:H=�:�;
L 
�=��M(�K�BDK>�=����>B�B9D;
L 
�=�9<9NC�BJ�A��<:�>BI��>B���?�<<:B9D;
L 
�=�����CC<:B�C
L 
�=��O>:��>
L 
�=��9>BPG��E:�CC�=�����BDK>C
L 
�=��BDK>B9D�<9��7��C�9C<:C

�=�E:B����E:���><�><B��>C�><�B9��GA��@B::<:C��E<I��I�9B>H;

S1TU3

5; ���<=�><�B9C>����9�=�JK<><E<<>K;

4VWVXYZU[\]V̂
���<=�?<:�?G���B9>�:9���:�A��<:�>B<9�><�=���C_���B�B9D_�:�AB�><:C��9A�=<<A
=<:F�B9��GAB9D�A<<:C��9A�?:�@�C;
���<=�?<:�9�=�B9>�:9���A<<:C��9A�B:<9�@<9D�:H;
���<=�?<:�9�=�A��<:�>BI���BDK>B9D�>K:<GDK<G>;
���<=�?<:�9�=�E:B����E:���C�K�@�;
���<=�9<@B9���?���?<:�?��>G:��=���J�J�:C;
���<=�?<:�CJ��B��BC>�CBD9�=:B>�:�><��JJ�H�>�O>��9A�@G:���A�CBD9C�B9>�:9���H;
+K��F�E<>K�D�C��9A�����>:B��@�>�:C��:���??B�B�9>��9A�CGB>�E��_�@�H�9��A
GJD:�A�;
���<=�?<:��Q���CE�C><C�CG:I�H��9A����<=�9���?<:�:�@<I��C�B?�:�PGB:�A;
���<=�?<:�9�=�?B:�����:@��9A��@�:D�9�H��BDK>B9D�CHC>�@;
���<=�?<:�9�=�:�AB�><:CMK��>B9D�=K�:��:�PGB:�A;
���<=�?<:�9�=�B9>:GA�:����:@�CHC>�@;

X̀\a\̂VbUcZ\\XUcdWd̂eV̂

fghfhijklmjn
jmogpmqjlrpoosmt

fghfhijklmjnlfpguvjo
wxhhgsmt

mjnlkjqhgposyjlwxhhg
osxji

�:�=B9D��B>��

�:<z��>��B>��

�:�=B9D�
<;

��>�

�:�=9

�����

��I;

+K��F�A

�>�>GC

�B{�

+�B�9>

|}~���}���

�*5�N�(�(�

��J>�(�() �+6�	�

�	

���� ���

�:<J<C�A���C�@�9>����9

7�<9C
�����G:H�
�=��A_��:�C>=B�K_�	�9�K�C>�:
	(��)��

��
7�7
8��
�

� �JA�>�A�?B:���C��J��:<G>���C�J�:
��B�9>C�:�PG�C>;

�5M��M()

������I��C��9A�AB@�9CB<9C�@GC>�E���K��F�A�<9�CB>��EH
�<9>:��><:�J:B<:�><��<@@�9��@�9>�<?�=<:FC;��9H
I�:B�>B<9C�@GC>�E��:�J<:>�A�><�������CBD9;
����B9?<:@�>B<9�K�:�<9�B9�BC�>K���<JH:BDK>�<?�������CBD9;
+<JHB9D�B9�?G���<:�B9�J�:>�BC�?<:EBAA�9�=B>K<G>�>K��=:B>>�9
J�:@BCCB<9�?:<@�������CBD9;

� �;� �;� �;� (;� (;� );� );� *;� *;�@
�+��

�;�

����

� �@�9A@�9>C�?<��<=B9D�CB>��@��>B9D;(5M��M()

P
age 32



  
 
Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley Item   02 

 
Applicant: Mr Asim Humza 
 
Location: 65 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DB 

 
Proposal: Change of use of ground floor from shop to restaurant (Use Class E) with opening 

times 07.30 - 21.00; canopy at front and installation of an external flue pipe at the 
side/rear (Temporary consent for 12 months) 

 
Application Ref:   70340/Full Target Date:  14/02/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application is retrospective as the building work has been completed and the unit is 
open to customers. The building has a ground floor area of 67sqm and is situated at the end 
of a row of two storey commercial properties that forms a Neighbourhood Shopping Centre. 
The property was previously a jeweller's shop with a flat above. The unit had been vacant 
since closing in August 2022. The attached property on the east side is No.67 and is an 
accountant's office and the detached property (No.63B) on the west side is in residential 
use. Properties across Windsor Road and to the rear are also residential.  
 
The proposal seeks to retain the building in its present form and use the ground floor as a 
restaurant/cafe which is in the same planning Use Class category, Class E,  as a retail 
shop and as such does not require consent.  
 
The proposal also includes the raised area bounded by a glazed balustrade below the 
external canopy on the frontage. The applicant has agreed that in the first instance to seek 
a temporary consent for 12 months. This would enable the business operations to be 
monitored in the light of any residential amenity issues such as noise and disturbance. 
 
The first floor would remain in residential use with access via an external staircase at the 
rear. 
 
The proposed extractor flue would be situated on the side elevation facing No.63B, towards 
the rear. Bin storage for the commercial unit and the flat on the first floor would be at the 
rear of the premises with access to the unmade road at the rear and also down the side of 
the property onto Windsor Road.   
 
Hours of opening would be Monday to Saturday 07.30am to 9.00pm daily. 
 
It is noted that this application follows a recent refusal of planning permission in October 
2023 for a similar proposal. Following submission, the applicant has agreed to amend the 
proposed closing time to 9pm from the 11pm originally proposed. The applicant has also 
agreed not to facilitate customer seating outside, under the canopy.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
69917 - Change of use of ground floor from shop to restaurant (Class E) with installation of 
a external flue pipe at the rear of the building - Refused 26/10/2023 (activities associated 
with the proposed use (outside seating) and insufficient information in relation to refuse 
collection/management and proposed extractor flue). 

Page 33



23/0337 - Enforcement - Unauthorised change of use of property to restaurant/ take away 
and installation of flue at rear of building -  21/09/2023. 
 
Publicity 
Immediate neighbours notified by letters dated 20/12/24 and 17/01/2024 (revised).  
 
Three objections received from a local resident and Councillors Quinn and Gold.  
Objections from resident are summarised below.  

• This is a residential area, which is served by local shops. The area, does not require any 
eateries, as there are many existing businesses nearby. 

• The proposed opening hours are unacceptable. It shows a lack of respect for local 
residents. 

• Parking concerns along Windsor Road which is already 'parked up'. The restaurant 
would make the situation worse We have already been notified of traffic calming 
measures which are being taken by Bury Council, to address ongoing traffic concerns, 
and this proposed restaurant will only exacerbate these issues. 

• The restaurant will generate noise pollution, from people using the restaurant, traffic, 
music and late-night revelling.  

• Cooking smells having a detrimental impact. 

• There is an increasing rodent problem, which will be impacted upon, due to the high 
level of food wastage and its subsequent disposal.  

• Decrease in property value, for local residents. 

• Increasing problem with rubbish/litter.  

• Will there be an alcohol licence issued for these premises? If so, will local residents be 
exposed to late night revelling and other people's noise pollution? 

• Taxis will negatively impact upon the peace and quiet required late at night.  
 
Objections from Councillors Quinn and Gold centre around the potential for anti-social 
behaviour related to the sale and consumption of alcohol and gathering of customers 
outside the premises especially later at night. 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No comment to date. 
Environmental Health - No objection. 
 
Pre-start Conditions -Not applicable.  
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/8 Shop Fronts 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
EC4/1 Small Businesses 
EC6/1 New Business, Industrial and Commercial 
S1/5 Neighbourhood Centres and Local Shops 
S2/6 Food and Drink 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations, including relevant policies in the emerging Places for Everyone Joint 

Page 34



Development Plan.  
 
The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be 
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For 
simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless there is a particular 
matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically 
mentioned.  
 
Policy - UDP policy EC4/1 Small Businesses states that proposals for small businesses will 
be acceptable when the scale of development is appropriate to, and the use is 
environmentally compatible with, the surrounding area in which it is to be located, and 
where they do not conflict with other policies and proposals of the Plan. 
 
S1/5 - Neighbourhood Centres and Local Shops. The Council will seek to retain retailing 
(Class A1), as the predominant use in small neighbourhood centres and in new or existing 
local shops, to cater primarily for the day to day needs of residents and businesses. 
 
S2/6 - Food and Drink. The Council in considering all proposals which involve restaurants, 
hot  food takeaways, cafes, snack bars, wine bars and public houses, together with any 
other uses contained within Class A3, will have regard to the following factors: 
a) the amenity of nearby residents by reason of noise, smell, litter and opening hours; 
b) whether or not the proposal would result in an over concentration of Class A3 uses, 
which could adversely change the nature or character of a centre as a whole; 
c) parking and servicing provision associated with the proposed development and its effects 
in terms of road safety, traffic generation and movement; 
d) provision for the storage and disposal of refuse and customer litter; 
e) the environmental impact of any ventilation flues and/or ducting. 
 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution. In seeking to limit noise pollution the Council will not permit: 
a) development which could lead to an unacceptable noise nuisance to nearby occupiers 
and/or amenity users; 
b) development close to a permanent source of noise. 
 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development. The Council will require all applications for 
development to make adequate provision for their car parking and servicing requirements in 
accordance with the Council's car parking standards.  
 
Places for Everyone 
The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) is a joint plan covering 
nine of the ten Greater Manchester districts, including Bury, and is 
intended to provide the overarching framework to strategically manage growth across the 
boroughs. PfE was published in August 2021 and subsequently submitted to the Secretary 
of State in February 2022. Inspectors have been appointed to carry out an independent 
examination of the Plan with the hearing sessions commencing in November 2022 and were 
concluding in July 2023. The examination of the plan is on going. 
 
Whilst PfE cannot be given full weight until it is adopted, its advanced stage of preparation 
means that it is now considered reasonable that the Plan (as proposed to be modified) 
should be given weight in the decision making process in line with paragraph 48 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. Consequently, the principle of this application has 
been considered against the Plan (as proposed to be modified). However, the principle of 
this proposal does not give rise to any conflict with PfE policies. 
 
Use - Whilst the loss of a retail shop unit is regrettable, the property has been vacant since 
closing in 2022.  It is permitted development  to interchange between uses within the same 

Page 35



use class.  A shop and restaurant and café are all within Class E and as such, the use 
would otherwise be permitted development. As such, the replacement with a restaurant/cafe 
use (serving food and drink for consumption largely on the premises) is appropriate in land 
use terms. 
 
Visual amenity - The existing property is an established commercial unit, previously in use 
as a jewellery store. It is clear that a continued vacancy period for the unit would not have a 
positive impact on the visual amenity and character of the shopping centre. The reuse of the 
unit is, in principle and legislatively, supported.  
 
The proposal includes alterations to the forecourt including raising the level, installing a 
balustrade and creating a covered timber framed canopy projecting out from the shop 
frontage. It is noted that these works have which is already constructed.  
 
Although relatively prominent within this part of the streetscape, the canopy would not have 
a seriously harmful visual impact. In principle, the establishment of a cafe/bar in this location 
would not be considered seriously harmful to the visual amenity of the streetscape. The 
proposal in principle would therefore not have a serious impact on visual amenity.  
Complies with UDP Policy EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design and S2/6 Food and Drink in 
terms of visual amenity.  
 
Residential amenity - UDP Policy S2/6 Food and Drink states that the impact on the 
amenity of nearby residents from noise, fumes/smells, litter and opening hours is a crucial 
factor any assessment of a proposal of this kind. 
 
Although the property has been in retail use for a number of years, the use, along with other 
businesses within the commercial row, have been more 'daytime only' uses that have not 
run into late evening operations and despite the commercial nature of the row, the area is 
relatively quiet. The first floor above is a flat and with the closest houses being located 
immediately next door at No.63B Windsor Road. There are houses immediately across the 
road and to the rear.  
 
With a revised opening time to 9pm daily and restrictions on the use of the area under the 
canopy, the impact of the proposed use in terms of noise and disturbance would be 
significantly mitigated, particularly as the unit is relatively modest in size and is the only food 
and drink/cafe use within the commercial row.  There would be limited disturbance when 
customers arrive and leave the premises but the impact would be not so serious as to 
warrant refusal of planning permission. 
 
The proposed flue on the side of the premises would generate noise and fumes but the 
impact on surrounding residents would be mitigated, operating with the appropriate 
equipment and a suitable condition of any approval.   
 
It is considered, given the more acceptable opening times and restrictions on the use of the 
external area, the proposed use would be acceptable for a preliminary 12 month period. 
This would allow operations to be assessed over this period before any more permanent 
change of use is assessed.  
 
Given the operational restrictions set out above, it is not considered that the proposed use 
would have a particularly serious and detrimental impact on the residential amenity and as 
such would comply with UDP Policies S2/6 Food and Drink, EC4/1 Small Businesses and 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution. 
 
Traffic - The premises, along with the majority of other businesses within the 
neighbourhood centre, has no  specific/dedicated on-site parking.  It is noted that the 

Page 36



immediate area is usually busy with cars parked in front the of commercial row in chevron 
formation. 
 
The previous commercial uses have operated without parking. Whilst the proposed cafe/bar 
use could potentially generate additional vehicular traffic in the evenings when Windsor 
Road would be more 'parked up' than during the daytime, the impact may be negligible 
given that the parking area in front of the commercial 'daytime'' businesses would be more 
available. Given the premises are relatively modest in scale, the impact on parking may not 
be so significant. 
 
Whilst the Council's Traffic Team recognises parking issues along this part of Windsor 
Road, it is not considered that the proposal could be reasonably refused on traffic/ parking 
grounds, not least due to the considerations of permitted development.  As such there is no 
objection from the traffic team and the proposal is considered acceptable and complies with 
UDP Policies S2/6 Food and Drink and HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development. 
 
Waste management/litter -   Refuse bins serving the residential unit at first floor would 
remain in the rear garden.  The initial proposal to site a large commercial bin within an 
enclosure on the frontage has been amended and it is now proposed to locate smaller 
commercial bins in the rear yard, along with the bins for the flat above.  A condition 
restricting commercial bin collection to opening hours would be attached to any approval. 
 
Public representations - The material planning issues raised by objectors have been 
addressed in the above report.  Concern about property prices is not material planning 
consideration. Concern about rodents is an issue that would be addressed by 
Environmental Health rather than planning. 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. Permission is hereby granted for a limited period only, namely for a period expiring 
12 months from the date of this decision notice, and the use comprising the 
development for which permission is hereby granted are required to be 
discontinued at the end of the said period and the external flue removed unless a 
valid application is received by the Local Planning Authority for its retention. 
Reason. In view of the temporary nature of the development and in order to retain 
control over its continued use having regard to the particular nature of the site and 
surroundings pursuant to The National Planning Policy Framework.  

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 01, 02, 03, 04a, 05b, 06b and 07a and 
the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 

Page 37



design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 
 

3. The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the following 
times: 07.30hrs to 21.00hrs daily. 
Reason. To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential 
accommodation pursuant to UDP Policies  S2/6 Food and Drink  and EN7/2 
Noise Pollution. 

 

4. There shall be no customer service/seating in outside areas including under the 
canopy on the frontage. 
Reason. In order to limit noise and disturbance in the interests of residential 
amenity pursuant to UDP Policy S2/6 Food and Drink.   

 

5. Within one month details of a scheme to manage fumes, vapours and odours to be 
extracted from the flue shall  to be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Only the approved scheme shall be implemented to the 
written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within one month. 
Reason. In the interests of amenity pursuant to Policies S2/5 New Local Shopping 
Provision Outside Recognised Shopping Centres and S2/6 Food and Drink of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

6. Commercial refuse collection shall only be within the following hours. 
07.30hrs - 18.00hrs  
Reason. In the interests of residential amenity pursuant to UDP Policies S2/6 Food 
and Drink and EN7/2 Noise Pollution.  

 
For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361 
 
 

Page 38



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69763

7 Nuttall Hall Road, Ramsbottom

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

9 to 12

83

81

14 to 17
75

58

59

65

47

60

5
0

56

63

63b

54

27

2
5

29

2
3

19 to 21

4

53

DOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAMDOWNHAM

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

W
IN

DSOR R
OAD

76.8m

1

2

4

5

3

Viewpoints

Page 39

70340

65 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester, 



70340 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

  Page 40



70340 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 
Page 41



70340 

Photo 5 

 

Page 42



                                                                                                                    
SITE LOCATION PLAN  

AREA 2 HA                                                 
SCALE  1:1250 on A4 

CENTRE COORDINATES: 383294, 403110 
                                                                                        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Supplied by Streetwise Maps Ltd 
www.streetwise.net 

Licence No: 100047474 
25/09/2023 12:07 

Page 43



H   S   H
Engineering Design Services Ltd
428 Cheetham Hill Road Cheetham Manchester
M8 9LE. UK  01617956385,07940197 333

dwg.
title

client

project
title

dwg.no. sheet no. scale. job no.

drawn by. checked by. approved by. date

- March 2023

Mr Asim Humza

65 Windsor Road Pretwich M25 0DB

The builder must check the site and the approved
drawings before commencing the works and must
take any working measurements as necessary.Any
discrepancy in the drawing must be reported to the
client .

Proposed  change of the ground floor from a shop
to restaurant including installation of an external flue pipe.

Site Layout Plan

Self contained apartment

P
age 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Site Layout Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
TZ

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
1:100 @ A3



H   S   H
Engineering Design Services Ltd
428 Cheetham Hill Road Cheetham Manchester
M8 9LE. UK  01617956385,07940197 333

dwg.
title

client

project
title

dwg.no. sheet no. scale. job no.

drawn by. checked by. approved by. date

-

Mr Asim Humza

The builder must check the site and the approved
drawings before commencing the works and must
take any working measurements as necessary.Any
discrepancy in the drawing must be reported to the
client .

Ground Floor Plan

1st Floor Plan

March 2023

65 Windsor Road Pretwich M25 0DB

Shop

Self contained apartment
Beam 1

Beam 2

Beam 3

Beam 4Beam 5

Beam 6

Proposed  change of the ground floor from a shop
to restaurant including installation of an external flue pipe.

Living Rm

Kitchen

Bed Room 1

Bed Room 2

P
age 45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Existing Plans

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
TZ

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
02

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
1:100 @ A3



H   S   H
Engineering Design Services Ltd
428 Cheetham Hill Road Cheetham Manchester
M8 9LE. UK  01617956385,07940197 333

dwg.
title

client

project
title

dwg.no. sheet no. scale. job no.

drawn by. checked by. approved by. date

-

Mr Asim Humza

The builder must check the site and the approved
drawings before commencing the works and must
take any working measurements as necessary.Any
discrepancy in the drawing must be reported to the
client .

March 2023

65 Windsor Road Pretwich M25 0DB

Sky light

1st Floor Plan

2nd Floor Plan

Bed Room

1
2 hr Fd

1
2 hr Fd

1
2 hr Fd

1
2 hr Fd

SD

SD

HD

New Staircase
Rise Not more than 220mm
Going not less than 220mm
Hand rail 1000mm above string
line.

Proposed  change of the ground floor from a shop
to restaurant including installation of an external flue pipe.

Bed Room 1

Bed Room 2

Bed Room 3

P
age 46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Existing Plan 

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
TZ

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
03

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1:100 @ A3



H   S   H
Engineering Design Services Ltd
428 Cheetham Hill Road Cheetham Manchester
M8 9LE. UK  01617956385,07940197 333

dwg.
title

client

project
title

dwg.no. sheet no. scale. job no.

drawn by. checked by. approved by. date

-

Mr Asim Humza

The builder must check the site and the approved
drawings before commencing the works and must
take any working measurements as necessary.Any
discrepancy in the drawing must be reported to the
client .

March 2023

65 Windsor Road Pretwich M25 0DB

Rear Elevation Side Elevation

Proposed  change of the ground floor from a shop
to restaurant including installation of an external flue pipe.

Front Elevation

Date       Rev         Description
07/06/28    A        Planning

P
age 47

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Existing Elevations

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
TZ

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
04a

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
1:100 @ A3



H   S   H
Engineering Design Services Ltd
428 Cheetham Hill Road Cheetham Manchester
M8 9LE. UK  01617956385,07940197 333

dwg.
title

client

project
title

dwg.no. sheet no. scale. job no.

drawn by. checked by. approved by. date

-

Mr Asim Humza

The builder must check the site and the approved
drawings before commencing the works and must
take any working measurements as necessary.Any
discrepancy in the drawing must be reported to the
client .

Ground Floor Plan

1st Floor Plan

March 2023

65 Windsor Road Pretwich M25 0DB

Restaurant / Cafe

Store Room

Kitchen / Cafe

Proposed  change of the ground floor from a shop
to restaurant including installation of an external flue pipe.

Bed Room 1

Bed Room 2

Living Rm

Kitchen

Date       Rev        Description

Canopy

25.9.23  A           Planning

P
age 48

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Proposed Plans

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
TZ

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
05A

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
1:100 @ A3



H   S   H
Engineering Design Services Ltd
428 Cheetham Hill Road Cheetham Manchester
M8 9LE. UK  01617956385,07940197 333

dwg.
title

client

project
title

dwg.no. sheet no. scale. job no.

drawn by. checked by. approved by. date

-

Mr Asim Humza

The builder must check the site and the approved
drawings before commencing the works and must
take any working measurements as necessary.Any
discrepancy in the drawing must be reported to the
client .

March 2023

65 Windsor Road Pretwich M25 0DB

External Flue
pipe

External Flue
pipe

Proposed  change of the ground floor from a shop
to restaurant including installation of an external flue pipe.

Front Elevation
Rear Elevation

Side Elevation

Canopy

Elevation From No 67

Canopy

Date       Rev        Description

25.9.23  A           Planning

Clear
corrugated clear
sheet canopy.

24.01.24 B          Planning

25.01.24 C          Planning

P
age 49

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Proposed Elevations

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
TZ

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
06C

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
1:100 @ A3



H   S   H
Engineering Design Services Ltd
428 Cheetham Hill Road Cheetham Manchester
M8 9LE. UK  01617956385,07940197 333

dwg.
title

client

project
title

dwg.no. sheet no. scale. job no.

drawn by. checked by. approved by. date

-

Mr Asim Humza

The builder must check the site and the approved
drawings before commencing the works and must
take any working measurements as necessary.Any
discrepancy in the drawing must be reported to the
client .

Site Layout Plan

March 2023

65 Windsor Road Pretwich M25 0DB

Proposed  change of the ground floor from a shop
to restaurant including installation of an external flue pipe.

Restaurant / Cafe

Store Room

Kitchen / Cafe

Canopy

Store Room

Plastic / Glass
Waste

Food Waste

Paper /
Cardboard

Bin Storage for
upper floor

Plastic / Glass
Waste

Commercial waste Storage .

Elevation A Elevation B Elevation DCommercial
 240 Lt Bin

Elevation A

Elevation C

Elevation B

Elevation D

Elevation C

P
age 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Proposed Waste Bin Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
TZ

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
07A

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1:100 @ A3



  
 
Ward: Bury East Item   03 

 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs McGill 
 
Location: 47 Fairfield Drive, Bury, BL9 7SL 

 
Proposal: Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey side extension  
 
Application Ref:   70342/Full Target Date:  12/02/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
The application is being considered by the Planning Control Committee as the applicant 
is a  
Councillor for Bury Council. 
 
Description 
The application relates to a two storey red brick semi-detached house on a residential road 
of similar styled properties. Driveway to the front and single storey outrigger at the side and 
conservatory at the rear. The attached neighbour at No.49 has not been extended. The 
unattached neighbour at No.45 has also not been extended and has a single storey 
outrigger along the shared side boundary with a door into a utility room. The neighbour has 
a stairwell and WC window at first floor. 
 
The existing single storey outrigger to the side would be demolished along with the 
conservatory at the rear.  A new single storey side extension would be located broadly on 
the same footprint as the side outrigger but would sit flush with the front and rear elevations 
of the dwelling, projecting out 3m and extending back 7.8m, from front to rear. It would stop 
300mm short of the shared side boundary with the neighbour at No.45 Fairfield Drive. The 
extension would accommodate a study and utility room. The extension would be finished in 
brick and tile to match the house. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
69622 - Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of two storey side extension  - 
Approve with Conditions 28/06/2023 
 
Publicity 
Immediate neighbours notified by 21/12/2024. No objections received. 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
N/A 
 
Pre-start Conditions - N/A 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
Visual Amenity - The proposed extension, in terms of scale, design and finish, would be in 
keeping with the existing house and would not appear prominent or incongruous within the 
streetscape. In terms of visual amenity, the proposal is acceptable and complies with UDP 

Page 51



Policy and guidance in SPD6.  
 
Residential Amenity - Given the position of the extension at the side of the house, it would 
not extend beyond the rear elevation of the applicant's house or the neighbour's house at 
No.47 Fairfield Drive. With no habitable room windows on the side gable, there would be no 
serious detrimental impact on residential amenity.  
 
In terms of residential amenity, the proposal is acceptable and complies with UDP Policy 
and guidance in SPD6.  
 
Parking and Access - The existing driveway with access onto Fairfield Drive would remain 
as existing.   
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered R-0778-01, 02B and 03A and the 
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. The  external finishing materials for the proposal hereby approved shall match 
those of the existing building. 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361 
 
 

Page 52



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

No Window 

No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69622

47 Fairfield Drive
Bury

*
(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

24
9

1

3

11

39

276

278

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK
CANDLESTICK PARK

CANDLESTICK PARK

FAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVEFAIRFIELD DRIVE

Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01Viewpoints - Item 01

1.

2. 3.

4.

Page 53



Item 01 - 69622 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 
Page 54



Item 01 - 69622 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



F R O N T    E L E V A T I O N
A S    E X I S T I N G

S I D E    E L E V A T I O N
A S    E X I S T I N G

R E A R    E L E V A T I O N
A S    E X I S T I N G

G R O U N D    F L O O R    P L A N
A S    E X I S T I N G

F I R S T    F L O O R    P L A N
A S    E X I S T I N G

rainwater butt

boiler

rwps&vp

KITCHEN / DINING

STORE

UTILITY up 110

OUT HOUSE

LIVING ROOM

s&vp

meter box

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 3

LANDING

BATHROOM

HALL

cup.bd

1 : 2 0 0    S C A L E    S I T E    P L A N

FAIRFIELD  DRIVE

CANDLESTIC  PAR

FAIRFIELD DRIVE

 
 12

1
 

 21

1
 

 1

1 
 

ROC DALE OLD ROAD

55

11

1

1

1
5

212

2

0

2

2

S

12
2

11

2

2

2 0

0

50

2

1

PRI
ROSE D

RIVE

1 : 1 2 5 0    S C A L E    L O C A T I O N    P L A N

DRAWING

DRAWN

DRAWING NO.

SCALE 

CAD REFERENCE NO.

DATE

REVISION

CHECKED

PROJECT

CLIENT

NOTES

A   R   C   H   I   T   E   C   T   S

Bank Chambers,  Bank Street,  Bury,  Lancashire,  BL9 0DL  Tel : 0161 797 2077
 info@equilibriumarchitects.co.uk   www.equilibriumarchitects.co.uk

REV DESCRIPTION CHECK DATE

GAVIN and SALLY McGILL

Proposed Extension and Alterations  
47 Fairfield Drive, Bury, BL9 7SL

Plans and Elevations as Existing

1:50 @ A1 April 2023 agw

R-0778-01

This drawing is the property of Equilibrium Architects and copyright is
reserved by them. This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or
to any unauthorised persons without the prior written consent of
Equilibrium Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.

All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to construction,
manufacture of any components and ordering of materials and
equipment.

Any discrepencies are to be reported to the architect for clarification.

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the current
British Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architectural,
Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
Specialists drawings and specifications.

As with all construction projects the CDM 2015 regulations apply and 
the work on this project may require both the issue of a notification to
the HSE (because of the durationof the works on site) and the client
may also need to appoint a Principal Designer because there may be
more than one contractor working on site.
The Principal Designer will be able to coorinate the pre-construction
information and also ensure that all duty holders under CDM comply
with their relevant duties.

The building owner is to serve a Party Wall Act Notice as applicable
to adjoining property owners as outlined in TheParty Wall Act 1996 
The Building Contactor is to verify the thickness of the party walls prior
to commencement of the proposed works.

P
age 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
 Crown Copyright and database rights 2023 OS Licence no. AC0000849896



FAIRFIELD  DRIVE

existing raised
deck area

existing path retained

The existing drive is to
widened and steps are to be

modified to suit

new pathtimber screen to
bin area

337

CANDLESTICK PARK

FAIRFIELD DRIVE

39

9 t
o 1

2

33

18
 to

 21

14
 to

 1
7

1 
to

 4

ROCHDALE OLD ROAD

55

1416

18

31

61
67

59

2128

26

30

27

23

9

Shelter

1

3

278
276

11

286

4 2

29 30

40

50

42
36

38

46

44

319

PRIM
ROSE D

RIVE

47

1  1 2 5 0    S C A L E    L O C A T I O N    P L A N

1  2 0 0    S C A L E

0 2 4 6 8 10 20

1  1 2 5 0    S C A L E

0 25 100 12510 50

DRAWING

DRAWN

DRAWING NO.

SCALE 

CAD REFERENCE NO.

DATE

REVISION

CHECKED

PROJECT

CLIENT

NOTES

A   R   C   H   I   T   E   C   T   S

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

GAVIN and SALLY McGILL

Proposed Extension and Alterations
47 Fairfield Drive, Bury, BL9 7SL

Site Plan as Proposed
and Site Location Plan

1:100 @ A2 April 2023 agw

R-0778-03 A

This drawing is the property of Equilibrium Architects and copyright is
reserved by them. This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or
to any unauthorised persons without the prior written consent of
Equilibrium Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.

All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to construction,
manufacture of any components and ordering of materials and
equipment.

Any discrepencies are to be reported to the architect for clarification.

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the current
British Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architectural,
Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
Specialists drawings and specifications.

As with all construction projects the CDM 2015 regulations apply and 
the work on this project may require both the issue of a notification to
the HSE (because of the durationof the works on site) and the client
may also need to appoint a Principal Designer because there may be
more than one contractor working on site.
The Principal Designer will be able to coorinate the pre-construction
information and also ensure that all duty holders under CDM comply
with their relevant duties.

The building owner is to serve a Party Wall Act Notice as applicable
to adjoining property owners as outlined in TheParty Wall Act 1996 
The Building Contactor is to verify the thickness of the party walls prior
to commencement of the proposed works.

Bank Chambers,  Bank Street,  Bury,  Lancashire,  BL9 0DL  Tel : 0161 797 2077
 info@equilibriumarchitects.co.uk   www.equilibriumarchitects.co.uk

A 05.12. 2023Amended scheme to ground floor extension only

P
age 57

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
 Crown Copyright and database rights 2023 OS Licence no. AC0000849896



R E A R    E L E V A T I O N
A S    P R O P O S E D

F R O N T    E L E V A T I O N
A S    P R O P O S E D

Brickwork to
match existing

S I D E    E L E V A T I O N
A S    P R O P O S E D

new
window

new door
Brickwork to
match existing

new
window

roof tiles to match
existing roof tiles to match

existing

New rainwater
downpipes and
gutters to
match existing

New rainwater
gutters to match
existing

New rainwater
gutters to match

existing
Rooflight

Roof tiles to
match existing

Brickwork to
match existing

G R O U N D    F L O O R    P L A N
A S    P R O P O S E D

F I R S T    F L O O R    P L A N
A S    P R O P O S E D

rwps&vp

LIVING ROOM

s&vp

meter box

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 3

LANDING

BATHROOM

HALL

DINING AREAKITCHEN

UTILITY

STUDY

WC/ SHOWER RM

2650.0 approx. clear

EX
TE

NS
IO

N

EXTENSION

3037.5

36
50

.0 
ap

pr
ox

. c
lea

r
bo

ile
r

cup.bd

Dryer

Washing
Machine

new rwp

Rooflight Rooflight

Existing walls

Proposed walls

KEY

DRAWING

DRAWN

DRAWING NO.

SCALE 

CAD REFERENCE NO.

DATE

REVISION

CHECKED

PROJECT

CLIENT

NOTES

A   R   C   H   I   T   E   C   T   S

Bank Chambers,  Bank Street,  Bury,  Lancashire,  BL9 0DL  Tel : 0161 797 2077
 info@equilibriumarchitects.co.uk   www.equilibriumarchitects.co.uk

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

GAVIN and SALLY McGILL

Proposed Extension and Alterations  
47 Fairfield Drive, Bury, BL9 7SL

Plans and Elevations as Proposed

1:50 @ A1 April 2023 agw

R-0778-02 B

This drawing is the property of Equilibrium Architects and copyright is
reserved by them. This drawing is not to be copied or disclosed by or
to any unauthorised persons without the prior written consent of
Equilibrium Architects.

Do not scale from this drawing.

All dimensions are to be checked on site prior to construction,
manufacture of any components and ordering of materials and
equipment.

Any discrepencies are to be reported to the architect for clarification.

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the current
British Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architectural,
Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, Electrical Engineers and
Specialists drawings and specifications.

As with all construction projects the CDM 2015 regulations apply and 
the work on this project may require both the issue of a notification to
the HSE (because of the durationof the works on site) and the client
may also need to appoint a Principal Designer because there may be
more than one contractor working on site.
The Principal Designer will be able to coorinate the pre-construction
information and also ensure that all duty holders under CDM comply
with their relevant duties.

The building owner is to serve a Party Wall Act Notice as applicable
to adjoining property owners as outlined in TheParty Wall Act 1996 
The Building Contactor is to verify the thickness of the party walls prior
to commencement of the proposed works.

A 25.04. 2023Client revisions
B 05.12. 2023Amended scheme to ground floor extension only

P
age 58



  
 
Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth Item   04 

 
Applicant: Mrs Janet Leach 
 
Location: 210 Turks Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3NW 

 
Proposal: Single storey extension at side 
 
Application Ref:   70367/Full Target Date:  29/02/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
The application is being considered by the Planning Control Committee as the applicant 
is   
related to a planning officer within Bury Council. 
 
Description 
The application relates to a semi-detached bungalow on the corner of Turks road and 
Freshfields. There is a driveway and garage to the rear of the garden with access onto 
Freshfields.  
 
The proposed side extension would project out 3.3m towards the side boundary with 
Freshfields leaving a gap of 2.7m. It would be set back 4.5m from the front and run back 
5.2m to the rear elevation. It would have a pitched roof to 3.9m, below the existing ridge and 
be finished in a render. The extension would comprise a conservatory/additional living 
space. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
N/A 
 
Publicity 
Immediate neighbours notified by letter dated 05/01/2024. No objections received.  
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
N/A 
 
Pre-start Conditions - N/A 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
Visual amenity - The side extension would be modest in scale and subservient to the main 
dwellinghouse. In design terms, it would be in keeping with the existing bungalow and would 
not be incongruous within streetscape. It would be acceptable in terms of visual amenity 
and comply with UDP Policy H2/3 and guidance in SPD6 relating to extensions and 
alterations.  
 
Residential amenity - Given the modest scale of the proposed extension and its siting 
within the plot, there are no issues relating to residential amenity. In terms of residential 
amenity, the extension is acceptable and complies with UDP Policy H2/3 Extensions and 

Page 59



Alterations and associated guidance in SPD6.  
 
Parking and access - The proposal would not have an impact on the existing driveway and 
parking to the rear of the plot. The extension is acceptable and complies with UDP Policy 
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations and associated guidance in SPD6 in relation to parking and 
access. 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 1/34/2024 and 2/34/2023 and the 
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361 

Page 60



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 70367

210 Turks Road, Radcliffe, 

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

215

5
6

212

210

225

59

223

1

43

45

2

34

TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD
TURKS ROAD

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

F
R

E
S

H
F

IE
L

D
S

100.9m

2 1

4

3

5

Page 61



70367 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 
Page 62



70367 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 
Page 63



70367 

Photo 5 

 

Page 64



4
0

8
,2

0
0

 m
. 
N

. 4
0

8
,2

0
0

 m
. N

.
376,800 m. E.

376,800 m. E.

SP37444Order Licence Reference:

The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of way.
The representation of features and lines is no evidence of a property boundary.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey OS100035409.

Date of Production: December 20th, 2023

210, TURKS ROAD, RADCLIFFE,
MANCHESTER, M26 3NW

Area: 141m x 141m
Center: 376828 408178

Bottom Left: 376758 408108 Top Right: 376899 408249
Ground Scale: 1:1250

70 m6050403020100 m

Page 65



P
age 66



5200

50

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 
Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood Item   05 

 
Applicant:  Manchester Eruv Committee 
 
Location: 3 no. sites on Sandgate Road, 2 no. sites on Heys Road and 1 no. site on Heywood 

Road, Willow Road, Fairfax Road and St Margarets Road 
 

Proposal: Erection of poles, TPK’s and Flat panels to create an Eruv on 9 no. sites 
 
Application Ref:   70011/Full Target Date:  06/12/2023 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application site comprises of various locations in Whitefield and Prestwich at Sandgate 
Road, Heys Road, Heywood Road, Willow Road, Fairfax Road and St Margaret's Road. 
 
The application is for the erection of structures which comprise 6m high poles, flat panels 
and TKP's or 'door frames/gateways' at 9 locations in connection with an Eruv. 
The posts would be similar to lampposts or telegraph poles albeit slimmer in diameter.  A 
wire would be attached to the top of the poles to bridge the poles and form what is know as 
a gateway.  
 
An Eruv is a formally recognised continuous boundary or a 'virtual' enclosed area which 
defined using Rabbinic principles, that designates an area whereby orthodox Jewish people 
are able to carry out day to day activities on the Sabbath whilst observing the requirements 
of the Sabbath. 
In the most part, the Eruv can be made up of pre-existing boundary walls and structures  
but in some areas the Eruv may be 'breached' or 'broken up' by a gap which needs to be 
bridged to continue the Eruv boundary or extend the current boundary.   
The concept of an Eruv does not require planning permission, it is the erection of the 
structures that do.   
 
In terms of using existing structures, the applicant states that existing infrastructure which is 
owned by many different stakeholders cannot be relied on due to inevitable maintenance, 
removal or replacement and this can cause disruptions to the Eruv.  In addition, many of 
the locations, existing lampposts and telegraph poles for instance do not meet Eruv 
requirements.   
 
In the case, the applicant is seeking to extend the current Eruv boundary by erecting 
structures in the 9 proposed locations as follows: 
  
Heys Road (WH1) - Arch across footpath to tram station entrance 
Heys Road  (WH2) - Flat panel under bridge 
Fairfax road (WH3) - Flat panel under bridge 
Willow Road (WH4) - Flat panel under bridge 
Sandgate Road (WH5) - 2 x 6m high poles 
Sandgate Road (WH6) - 2 x 6m high poles to entrance of Prestwich Heys AFC 
Sandgate Road (WH7) - TPK across pedestrian entrance to Prestwich Heys AFC 
Heywood road (WH8) - 2 x 6m high poles 
St Margarets Road (WH9) - 2 x 6m high poles.  
 

Page 69



To clarify the type of structures proposed -  
TPK - This is an abbreviation of three Hebrew words devised by the Eruv committee as 
there was no proper description for these types of structure which is essentially a metal 
framed 'doorway' or 'archway', often with a central scroll design. 
Flat panel - A profiled steel panel generally fitted to walls.  
Poles - 6m high galvanised posts usually fitted on public footways on streets.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
60184 - Erection of 2.3m and 6m high poles (some connected with string) at 3 sites, to 
create an Eruv - Approved 7/9/2016 
55356 - Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 54353 to include amendments to the 
location of poles - Approved 10/8/2012 
54353 - 31 Locations: 6-8m high poles, 1.2m high poles, gating enclosures, 1.2m high 
fencing and associated works - Approved 18/10/2011 
 
Publicity 
21 properties directly affected by the position of the structures were notified by means of 
letter on 16/10/23. 
Site notices posted on 23/10/23. 
 
Four objections received (from 3 addresses) with issues as follows: 
 

• What is a TPK or a Flat Panel? 

• Would like to know where exactly on St Margarets Road the pole is planned to be. 

• St Margarets Road - No objection to the Eruv but do object to the erection of two poles 
at the park entrance particularly as there are telegraph poles on other side of the park 
entrance which could be adapted to carry the Eruv wire 

• visually intrusive: The proposed poles are unsightly and not in keeping with the 
attractive brick park walls, the old gatekeepers cottage and woodland backdrop which 
exist in the area. The addition of two very high grey poles will ruin the existing aesthetic. 

• Particularly concerned that the proposed pole on the pavement side of the park 
entrance will further reduce the width of an already narrow paved entrance. 

• Concerned that the proposed poles will also make it easier for people to scale the park 
walls at night to gain entrance to the park when it's closed which has been an ongoing 
problem over a number of years.  

• Heaton Park should be for people of all faiths and none symbolism should be used 
above the park entrance.   

• Essentially claiming a public area as a private area and therefore taking over a public 
space for a religious purpose. 

• Concerned additional poles will impact visibility at the busy entrance risking 
pedestrians/bikes/animals/vehicles.  There has already been a fatal accident in this 
area. The Eruv 'gateway' may distract users at the park gate which is already tight (blind 
corner / bus stop). 

• The pedestrian gate and pavement was recently widened at cost to park/council 
allowing prams/wheelchairs easier access. A pole is planned in that exact area negating 
improvements & wasting money spent. 

• Poses a danger to birds and bats can fly into the thin wire between the posts and injure 
themselves.  

• Organisations state that where poles are available they'll be used instead of new poles, 
I'm therefore unsure why there would be a requirement for additional poles for the 
purposes of the Eruv.  

• It does not for fill any tangible real world purpose, unlike the limited other 'street 
furniture' (a street light and electricity pole which services the community) it is 
non-essential.  

Page 70



 
Revised plan received to show poles re-positioned at the entrance to Heaton Park, reduced 
in diameter to 76mm and painted black. 
Neighbours re-notified of the changes on 11/1/24. 
 

• Painting the two six foot tall poles black will not significantly reduce the visual impact 
they make. The colour also conflicts with the green colour used for the adjacent park 
gates. The proposed Eruv structure remains intrusive.  

• The proximity of the pole located to the left of the park gates to the perimeter wall 
means it will be targeted and used by people to scale the park walls when it is closed. 
As well as the being a security risk and potentially leading to anti-social behaviour, it 
would likely cause damage to the Eruv itself, which will lead to further disruption when it 
requires repairing.  

• I do not believe the views and concerns of local residents have been adequately 
considered.  

• Eruv pole locations have been adjusted slightly; this doesn't satisfactorily address 
concerns re: visibility and access issues (two people have sadly died in collisions with 
cars at this location). Any reduction in space for people entering / exiting the park 
increases the risk of accidents.  

• Existing telegraph poles located at the park gates could be utilised to carry the wire; 
these poles have been in this location for many years and are highly unlikely to be 
relocated. Have sufficient efforts been made to assess the viability of using these? 

• The Eruv would fulfilll the same purpose if located inside the park gates / entrance.  
 
Those who have made representations have been notified of the Planning Control 
Committee meeting.  
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection in principle.   
Transport for Greater Manchester - No objection in principle.  
Public Rights of Way Officer - No response received 
Manchester City Council - No response received.  
Metrolink - No objection in principle and require a condition to agree the design and 
installation of the structures.  
 
Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/4 Street Furniture 
EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement 
RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 

Page 71



considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty  
Section 149 of the Equality Act places a general duty on public bodies to have due regard to 
the need to eliminate discrimination and promote equality with regard to those with 
protected characteristics such as race, disability, religion or belief, gender and sex and to 
foster good relations between different groups when discharging it functions.   It is not 
considered that any one group would be disadvantaged by the proposed Eruv, however, 
those who observe Jewish law against carrying on the Sabbath would benefit from the 
proposal.  As such there would be benefits to groups with protected characteristics, 
including parents and grandparents of young children, the disabled and elderly as well as 
their families.  The proposal is therefore considered to benefit these protected groups and 
advance equality of opportunity.  There is no evidence to suggest other such proposals 
elsewhere in Bury have had an adverse impact on community cohesion.     
 
Places for Everyone 
 
The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) is a joint plan covering 
nine of the ten Greater Manchester districts, including Bury, and is 
intended to provide the overarching framework to strategically manage growth across the 
boroughs. PfE was published in August 2021 and subsequently submitted to the Secretary 
of State in February 2022. Inspectors have been appointed to carry out an independent 
examination of the Plan with the hearing sessions commencing in November 2022 and were 
concluding in July 2023. The examination of the plan is on going. 
 
Whilst PfE cannot be given full weight until it is adopted, its advanced stage of preparation 
means that it is now considered reasonable that the Plan (as proposed to be modified) 
should be given weight in the decision making process in line with paragraph 48 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. Consequently, the principle of this application has 
been considered against the Plan (as proposed to be modified). However, the principle of 
this proposal does not give rise to any conflict with PfE policies. 
 
Siting, design and appearance   
The application proposes 3 types of structures - poles, flat panels and a 'doorframe' or 
gateway design.   
 
The arched frame proposed to be located to the pedestrian entrance of the Metrolink Station 
at Heys Road would be steel portal yellow powder coated,  to reflect the branding of 
Metrolink portals and structures on the network which would directly relate to the character 
of the Metrolink setting.  
The archway structure proposed next to the pedestrian entrance to Prestwich Heys on the 
other hand would comprise two slimline black poles with a central scroll design and finished 
in a black colour.  It would be set at the back edge of the highway and the design would be 
uncomplicated and modest and considered not to be an obtrusive addition within the street 
scene and this setting.  
 
The flat panels would be located on walls which form an underpass at Metrolink Bridges.  
The panels would be approximately 1.2m high and 0.5m wide and would be erected so as 
not to protrude from the bridge structure or obstruct pedestrian access. The panels would 
be steel powder coated black.  The applicant would need to enter into an agreement with 
Metrolink to establish the liability for the panels themselves and also the ongoing 
maintenance required in relation to both the bridge structure and the panels. This would be 
a civil matter.  

Page 72



 
The proposed posts which would be located on the highway would be 6m high and a simple 
tubular design.  The exterior would be finished in a galvanised grey steel and the posts 
would be erected next to walls, boundaries or at the back edge of the footway. The erection 
of the poles would not add a significant number of pieces of street furniture to the area, and 
the poles would appear similar to street columns which are found in residential streets. 
Given their siting and appearance it is considered the poles would not be prominent or 
intrusive to the visual amenities of the area.  
 
The poles which would be located at the entrance to Heaton Park on St Margarets Road 
would be set back against the stone boundary wall to the park and would have a black 
exterior finish which would be appropriate against the backdrop of the park. 
 
The erection of the poles would not add a significant number of pieces of street furniture to 
the area, and the poles would appear similar to street columns which are found in 
residential streets. 
 
It is therefore considered that the proposed Eruv structures would have a similar design and 
appearance to other street furniture which are commonly found on streets and in areas 
within the locality of each of these sites.  It is considered the proposed development would  
therefore not harm the  visual amenity of the areas and would comply with UDP EN1/2 - 
Townscape and Built Design.  
 
Residential amenity 
Where the structures would be located near to residential properties, they would either be 
located in between houses or set at the back of edge of pavement where it would not be 
unusual to site a telegraph pole or a lamppost.  These new posts would resemble 
lampposts and telegraph poles, both of which are exempt from the need for planning 
permission when erected by the Council or Statutory Undertaker.  They would not look so 
out of place as to be a detriment to the residential amenity of the neighbouring properties.  
 
It is considered that the structures would be sensitively sited and would not have a 
detrimental impact on the residential amenity and would comply with EN1/2 - Townscape 
and Built Design. 
 
Highway issues 
The proposed posts would be located in areas that would not impede accessibility along the 
pedestrian footway. 
 
The poles which are proposed at Sandgate Road (WH5) and Heywood Road (WH8) would 
be linked by a wire across the highway which would clear the highway at a minimum height 
of 5.5m which is shown on the proposed site plans.  TfGM have been consulted and have 
noted the minimum height which they state should not be an issue.    
 
No objections have been received from the Traffic Section with regard to the siting of any 
any of the structures.  An appropriate management and maintenance agreement between 
the applicant and the Highway Authority would need to be entered into with a scope and 
specifications for the foundations which should be designed to be clear of any statutory 
undertakers plant.  This would be covered under the Highway Act and for the applicant to 
obtain a license.  An informative to the applicant would be included to this effect.  
 
As such, the proposed development is considered acceptable and would not conflict with 
UDP Policy HT6/1 - Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement.  
 
Metrolink 

Page 73



In relation to the sites numbered WH1, WH2, WH3 and WH4, these directly impact 
Metrolink infrastructure and Metrolink have no objection to the principle of the proposals.  
The exact locations, nature, fixings would need to be agreed with Metrolink which is a civil 
matter and an informative included to advise the applicant to contact Metrolink directly.  
From a planning perspective, the proposals are considered acceptable.   
 
Transport for Greater Manchester  
The quantum of development would not trigger the requirement for a highway impact review 
by TfGM.  
 
In terms of other comments, TfGM would note the following: 

• For site WH8, it would need to be ensured that the Eruv would not impact on the bus 
route or the bus stops. The site plan for WH8 outlines that the arch would be at a 
minimum height of 5.5m for cars, which should not be an issue. 

• The applicant is advised to confirm with TfGM whether the proposals would be 
acceptable or whether the existing bus stop would need to be relocated. If relocation 
proposals are necessary, these would need to be progressed and agreed through the 
statutory process and would need to be wholly funded by the applicant and be in 
accordance with TfGM's bus stop design guidelines. 

• Should construction works impact upon the use of the bus stop, TfGM would advise the 
applicant to liaise with TfGM prior to undertaking any works on site. 

 
An informative to the applicant to advise they liaise directly with TfGM with regards to the 
above issues would be included.  
 
Response to objectors 

• The poles proposed to the entrance to Heaton Park have been changed and it is now 
proposed to finish the exterior in a black colour which would be less visually intrusive 
and locate the poles at the back edge of the footway to avoid any obstructions in this 
area.   

• In terms of the wires (which would be affixed to the top of the poles to form a connection 
between the poles to create the Eruv) these would be similar to telegraph poles and as 
such it is considered that there would be no more harm to wildlife or bats and birds than 
from similar existing structures located in these areas.  

• The applicant has stated that utilising existing structures would cause issues of 
ownership and the potential for future maintenance, relocation or even removal of 
existing structures.   

• Regarding Site WH9 - St Margaret's Road, there is existing street furniture already 
located close to the wall and it is considered that the location and pole structures 
themselves would not add to any increase in security breaches or acts of vandalism 
than could already occur.  

• All representations received to the application have been reported and considered. 

• All other issues have been covered in the above report.   
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 74



 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered - 
Heys Road (WH1) - DA23033. 401. C 
Heys Road  (WH2) - DA23033. 402. A 
Fairfax road (WH3) - DA23033. 403. A 
Willow Road (WH4) - DA23033. 404. A 
Sandgate Road (WH5) - DA23033. 405. A 
Sandgate Road (WH6) -DA23033. 406. A 
Sandgate Road (WH7) - DA23033. 407. A 
Heywood road (WH8) - DA23033. 408. B 
St Margarets Road (WH9) - DA23033. 409. B 
 and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the 
drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. The structures (relating to the Eruv) hereby approved are required to be 
respectively removed as soon as reasonably practicable after it is no longer 
required for the purposes of serving the Eruv and the land restored to its condition 
before the development took place. 
Reason.  In the interests of visual and residential amenity pursuant to Bury 
Unitary development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design 

 
For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 253-5320 

Page 75



70011 

Photo 1 – Site WH4 Willow Road 

 

Photo 2 – Site WH3 Fairfax Road 

 
Page 76



70011 

Photo 3 – Site WH1 Heys Road 

 

Photo 4 - Site WH2 Heys Road 

 

Page 77



70011 

Photo 5 – Site WH7 Sandgate Road 

 

Photo 6 – Site WH6 Sandgate Road 

 
Page 78



70011 

Photo 7 – Site WH5 Sandgate Road 

 

Photo 8 – Site WH8 Heywood Road 

 
Page 79



70011 

Photo 9 – Site WH8 Heywood Road 

 

Photo 10 – Site WH9 St Margarets Road 

 

Page 80



Heys Road

Fairfa
x Road

R
ectory Lane

W
H

1

W
H

1

Metrolink Sign 

Metrolink Sign Lamppost

Railing

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

C

Planning

26 JUL 2023 YM

WH1 - Heys Road, M25 1JY

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

401.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

B WH1 - amend colour of TPK YM 19/01/24

C WH1 - Metrolink portal YM Date 5

1 : 1250

Site - WH1 - Location Plan1.

1 : 200

Site - WH1 - Site Plan2.

WH1 - TPK
TPK across footpath leading up to tram station from 

Heys Road .
(Ref 1) - steel portal Yellow powder coated. Exact 
design and dimensions TBC with Metrolink 

Arch to be a minimum height of 2.5m for pedestrians or 
2.7m for cyclists

N

0

SCALE 1:

504030201010

m1250

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

Prestwich

Ref - 1

P
age 81



W
H2

Heys Road

Fairfa
x Road

R
ectory Lane W

H2

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

26 JUN 2023 YM

WH2 - Heys Road, M25 1JY

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

402.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

1 : 200

Site - WH2 - Site Plan1.

1 : 1250

Site - WH2 - Site Plan - Location Plan2.

WH2 - Flat Panel Under Bridge

1200mm high and 500mm wide. 
profiled steel panel screwed into the wall. Powder 
coated black.

Either side of the bridge - at corresponding opposites at 
ground level 

N

0

SCALE 1:

504030201010

m1250

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

500

1
2
0

0

P
age 82



Fairfa
x Road

W
H3

Heys Road

Fairfa
x Road

R
ectory Lane

W
H3

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

28 JUL 2023 YM

WH3 - Fairfax Road, M25 3AY

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

403.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

1 : 200

Site - WH3 - Site Plan1.

1 : 1250

Site - WH3 - Site Plan - Location Plan2.

N

0

SCALE 1:

504030201010

m1250

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

WH3 - Flat Panel Under Bridge

1200mm high and 500mm wide. 
profiled steel panel screwed into the wall. Powder 
coated black.

Either side of the bridge - at corresponding opposites at 
ground level 

500

1
2
0

0

P
age 83



Willow Road 
WH4

Willow Road 

S
ta

n
le

y
 A

v
e
 S

WH4

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

31 Jul 2023 YM

WH4 - Willow Road, M25 3DZ

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

404.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

31 Jul 2023 YM

WH4 - Willow Road, M25 3DZ

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

404.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

1 : 200

Site - WH4 - Site Plan1.

1 : 1250

Site - WH4 - Site Plan - Location Plan2.

N

0

SCALE 1:

504030201010

m1250

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

WH4 - Flat Panel Under Bridge

1200mm high and 500mm wide. 
profiled steel panel screwed into the wall. Powder 
coated black.

Either side of the bridge - at corresponding opposites at 
ground level 

500

1
2
0

0

P
age 84



WH5

S
a
n
d
g
a
te

 R
o
a
d
 

Bridge Barrier

Boundary Fence
PH AFC

S
a
nd

g
a
te

 R
o
a
d
 

Warwick Ave

WH5

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

31 JUL 2023 YM

WH5 - Sandgate Road, M45 6NT

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

405.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

1 : 200

Site - WH5 - Site Plan1.

1 : 1250

Site - WH5 - Site Plan - Location Plan2.

WH5 - TP

2 x 6 m High

89 mm Dia - Galvanised steel post across

Sandgate Road.

Arch to be at a minimum height 5.5m for cars.

N

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

P
age 85



S
a
n
d
g
a
te

 R
o
a
d
 

WH6

Vehicle Gate
Prestwich Heys AFC

Boundary Fence
PH AFC

S
a
n
d
g
a
te

 R
o
a
d
 

Warwick Ave

WH6

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

31Jul 2023 YM

WH6 - Sandgate Road, M45 6NT

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

406.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

1 : 200

Site - WH6- Site Plan1.

1 : 1250

Site - WH6- Site Plan - Location Plan2.

WH6 - TP

2 x 6 m High

89 mm Dia - Galvanised steel post across

vehcile entrance to Prestwich Hays AFC 

Arch to be at a minimum height 5.5m for cars.

N

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

31Jul 2023 YM

WH6 - Sandgate Road, M45 6NT

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

406.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

P
age 86



S
a
nd

g
a
te

 R
o
a
d
 

Warwick Ave

W
H7

S
a
n
d
g
a
te

 R
o
a
d
 

W
H7

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

A

Planning

31JUL 2023 YM

WH7 - Sandagte Road, M45 6NT

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

407.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

1 : 1250

Site - WH7- Site Plan - Location Plan2.

1 : 200

Site - WH7- Site Plan1.

WH7 - TPK
TPK across pedestrian enterance to Prestwich Heys 
AFC .
2300mm High x 75mm Dia - Galvanised steel post and 
wrought iron scrollwork atop with black powder coating.

Arch to be a minimum heigt of 2.5m for pedestrians or 
2.7m for cyclists

N

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

A-Frame Cycle Barrier 

Boundary Fence -
PH AFC 

P
age 87



H
e
yw

oo
d
 R

o
ad

T
h
o
rn

le
y R

o
a
d

WH8

Telegraph Pole

Road Sign

Lamppost

Reservoir fencing

Telegraph Pole

H
ey

w
o
od

 R
o
ad

T
ho

rnley R
oa

d

W
e
stho

lm
e R

o
a
d

Heaton Park Reservoir

WH8

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

B

Planning

31JUL 2023 YM

WH8 - 317 Heywood Road, M25
2RF

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

408.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

B WH* - new telegraph pole YM 11/12/23

N

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

1 : 200

Site - WH8 - Site Plan1.

1 : 1250

Site - WH8 - Site Plan - Location Plan2.

WH8 - TP

2 x 6 m High

89 mm Dia - Galvanised steel post across

Heywood Road.

Arch to be at a minimum height 5.5m for cars.

P
age 88



St M
arg

arets R
oad

WH9

Par
k 

W
al

l 

Park Gates 

St M
arg

are
ts R

oad

S
t M

arg
arets C

lose Heaton Park

WH9

STATUS

SCALE @ A3 DATE

© COPYRIGHT : ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

DRAWING TO BE USED FOR THE STATUS INDICATED ONLY. 
ALL DIMENSIONS AND SETTING OUT SHALL BE CHECKED AND CONFIRMED ON SITE. 

ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS TO BE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT STATUTORY LEGISLATION, RELEVANT CODES OF 
PRACTICE AND BRITISH STANDARDS. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE IN 

MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DRAWN BY

NOTES

TITLE

PROJECT

CLIENT

REV.PROJECT NO. DRAWING NO.

As indicated

B

Planning

01 AUG 2023 YM

WH9 - St Margarets Road, M25
2GT

Manchester Community Eruv

Eruv Extension - Whitefield

409.DA23033.

REV DESCRIPTION BY DATE

A Validation changes YM 10/10/23

B WH9 - eruv poles moved and made green YM 04/01/23

N

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

0

SCALE 1:

2520151055

m500

1 : 200

Site - WH9 - Site Plan1.

1 : 1250

Site - WH9 - Site Plan - Location Plan2.

WH6 - TP

2 x 6 m High

76 mm Dia - Black polyester powder coated steel post across

entrance to Heaton Park.

Arch to be at a minimum height 5.5m for cars.

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 
Ward: Radcliffe - East Item   06 

 
Applicant: Miss Hannah Kaikal 
 
Location: 21 Church Street East, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2PG 

 
Proposal: Change of use of ground floor to 7 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (Sui 

Generis); Single storey rear extension; Alterations to include new windows and doors 
 
Application Ref:   70136/Full Target Date:  15/01/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
This application has been referred to Planning Control Committee as the proposal is 
subject to more than 2 objections. 
 
Description 
The proposal relates to the former Papermakers Arms, which used to immediately oppose 
the main entrance into East Lancashire Paper Mill and was framed by traditional terraced 
dwellings on all sides (now largely demolished). The building ceased operating as a public 
house many years ago and there have been intervening unauthorised uses since its 
closure, including as a gym with pharmacy.   
 
The existing building is two storey with brick elevations and a tile roof, with single storey 
additions on the north side that project into the private curtilage which is enclosed by a high 
brick wall and there is dropped kerb access into this area from Cock Clod Street. There is a 
two bedroom flat at first floor. The entire building is presently vacant. 
 
The site is flanked by a disused car park to the south-west that will become a landscaped 
open space associated with the ongoing construction of a residential development for 27 
dwellings (planning permission 67965), traditional terraced dwellings to the north and the 
presently vacant site of the former East Lancashire Paper Mill to the east and south, across 
Cock Clod Street and Church Street East (currently subject to an undetermined reserved 
matters application relating to the development of 400 dwellings). 
 
The site falls within the Radcliffe East Employment Generating Area and the Inner Radcliffe 
Housing Improvement Area in the Bury Unitary Development Plan (UDP). The site falls 
within Flood Zone 2. 
 
The proposal is for the change of use of ground floor to 7 bedroom House in Multiple 
Occupation (HMO), single storey rear extension (following demolition of the existing rear 
extensions) and other alterations to include new windows and doors. The rear curtilage 
would be split for separate usage of the occupants of the existing first floor flat and the 
proposed ground floor HMO and a secure cycle storage outbuilding would be installed with 
storage space for 6 bicycles . No off-street parking would be provided. 
 
The proposal is supported by a Design and Access Statement and a further statement that 
provides greater detail on the type of accommodation to be provided. It states that the aim 
for the property is to provide a Co-living standard of attractiveness (Co-living is where the 
accommodation is of a modern high quality shared living experience where the 
accommodation affords things such as personal ensuites, double sized room standards for 
single occupants, home working facilities built in, high spec kitchens and therefore longer 

Page 91



expected tenancies). 
 
 
Relevant Planning History 
No relevant history. 
 
Publicity 
Direct neighbour notification letters sent 28/11/2023. 
Site notice erected 30/11/2023. 
 
18 representations have been received raising objections that can be summarised as 
follows: 
 
Councillor A Booth 
The prolific number of single person accommodation/HMO's is already unmanageable in 
this area.  
The negative impact on health services in an area with the highest mortality rate and a town 
with no leisure facilities.  
It is difficult to understand this application fully, without knowing the plans for the upstairs 
area of the building. Potentially this 7-bed ground floor could accommodate 14 adults.  
I appreciate that the residential area upstairs does not require change of use to residential 
like the downstairs does, but one can only assume that upstairs will become yet more 
bedrooms and therefore a much bigger prospect than the 7 bed accommodation being 
proposed.  
Ultimately, if 5 or more double bedrooms are created upstairs, there could be upwards of 25 
individuals, living in this building. 
 
HMO standards for bedroom sizes are, 6.5sqm for person over the age of ten and 10.2sqm 
for double occupancy. As all of these bedrooms are larger than 10.2sqm, it would seem that 
the owner is either very generous or intends to rent these as double rooms. 
 
The communal living area shows one sink and one hob which does not seem a reasonable 
facility for 7 individuals/7 couples (assuming upstairs has its own kitchen). 
There are 7 dining chairs and 6 other chairs depicted which also does not seem enough if 
these are indeed double rooms (and upstairs has its own lounge/diner).   
 
The application states they will be using the main sewer but contradicts itself by saying they 
won't be connecting to the main drain. 
The application also states that there is no water nearby, that may affect the development. 
The River Irwell is 100m away and has history of flooding.  
 
The plans show 4 refuse bins in the back yard. This is the standard for an ordinary family 
home where meals etc. are shared. 7-12+ individually rented rooms will generate far more 
waste than a single family. As this is a commercial enterprise, they should have commercial 
waste bins to avoid fly tipping and rats.  
 
If this development is approved, it will have to be a registered HMO due to its size. I am not 
confident that Bury MBC have the capacity to ensure any HMO in the area is managed to a 
high standard, as they already have a number of registered HMO's that are currently out of 
licence. Radcliffe has a significant number of single occupancy smaller HMO's, and single 
person accommodation with many more in the pipeline. It absolutely does not need any 
more of this type of development. 
 
This building is situated in the middle of family homes where local amenities are scarce. The 
plan to build hundreds of homes directly opposite would suggest that this building should be 

Page 92



retained as a community facility (pub or food shop) of some description. There are no good 
quality amenities for new families moving in, or for those already living here.  
 
The property does not own the adjacent car park which is a space known for anti social 
behaviour, as are the areas around the site. Fly tipping and illegal activity are a daily 
occurrence. When the East Lancs Papermill site is built on, this building may find itself, with 
no street parking, on the corner of an access road into a development of family homes, 
which would put it at odds with its neighbours. HMO's tenants are by their nature a transient 
population and unlikely to contribute to our community.  
 
Councillor Carol Birchmore 
I am assuming from the proposed size of the bedrooms that the majority or all the bedrooms 
will be double bedrooms which could potentially result in 14 new residents to the area.  
 
This proposed development is close to the centre of Radcliffe. Radcliffe town centre has an 
index of multiple of deprivation of 1 which means that it is in 10% most deprived areas in the 
country. 
 
According to the Census 2021 data released by the Office of National Statistics, 39.6% of all 
accommodation in Radcliffe town centre is flats, maisonettes or apartment buildings 
compared to an average of 14.3% for Bury MBC as a whole. There is a significantly higher 
number of 1 and two bedroom properties compared to the average number for Bury MBC 
(19.3% compared to 8.9% one bedroom and 52% compared to 29.1% for two bedrooms).  
 
The general health of the residents in the area is lower than the average for Bury which 
means that the support services in the area are already struggling to meet demand. A 
significant number of residents living in the town centre are reliant on some kind of benefit, 
health and welfare services and support offered by the voluntary sector all of which appear 
to be struggling to keep up with demand.   
 
The area already has a number of HMOs in properties close to this one as well as a much 
higher percentage of social housing.  
 
The site bordering this proposed development has been earmarked for building over 400 
homes as part of the redevelopment of the East Lancashire Papermill site. The 
development of this site will hopefully bring some much needed affordable 3 bedroom family 
homes. The site is close to the new development by Great Places Housing of 3 bedroom 
family homes at Cock Clod Street and so while the site may currently appear to be relatively 
isolated it will soon be located within an important new development.  
The plans show that owner has not purchased the car park next to the site so the footprint 
of the land on which the development is to take place is very restrictive with no facility for 
any off-street parking. It should be noted that many of the surrounding roads are permit 
parking only and demand for parking is likely to increase in this area with the completion of 
the 20 apartments which make up part of the Great Places Development.  
 
The area close to the proposed development consist of 2 and 3 bedroom terraced housing 
and residents have expressed concerns about the potential noise and the risk of antisocial 
behaviour a seven bedroom HMO could bring. Residents have already experienced 
problems with some of the industrial operations in the area and will undoubtedly experience 
significant disruption when larger scale building commences on the East Lancashire Paper 
Mill site.  
 
Given the issues outlined above it should be questioned whether this is a suitable location 
for a HMO of this size. 
 

Page 93



Other third party representations 
 
Highways and traffic 
There is no provision for parking and the proposed development of 400 homes on the East 
Lancs Papermill site would create congestion and reduced air quality in the area. 
There is only one (vehicular) entrance into the area, which is already choked with traffic at 
busy times and there will be a new school that will add additional traffic, which would be a 
potential danger to young students. 
When the East Lancs Papermill site is built on, this building may find itself, with no street 
parking, on the corner of an access road into a development. 
 
Amenity 
A HMO may generate anti-social behaviour and the area has enough HMO's and the site is 
adjacent to family housing, new proposed housing, including on the former papermill site 
and walking routes. 
HMO tenants are transient and unlikely to contribute to our community. 
The lack of waste and recycling provision will impact on rubbish and fly-tipping and affect 
the Council's achievement of net zero. 
There is drug use and high crime in the area that doesn't need encouraging.  
As the proposed room sizes far exceed the minimum standards, these could be occupied as 
double or family rooms, putting the capacity to over 20. Therefore, the communal areas do 
not seem adequate. 
The communal living area shows one sink and one hob, which does not seem a reasonable 
facility for 7 individuals /couples and there aren't enough dining chairs indicated. 
They should have commercial waste bins to avoid fly tipping and rats. 
 
Planning policy 
Having regard to the size and type of accommodation proposed, the proposal should be 
considered with respect to the on-going Radcliffe Strategic Regeneration Framework. 
 
Drainage and flooding 
No flood statement has been submitted when the site falls within an area of flooding. 
 
Other matters 
There is already a high number of both registered and unregistered HMO's in this area. With 
currently few to no leisure and recreation facilities in the vicinity. Occupation of the HMO 
would add additional pressure on local services (e.g. GP's/dentists). 
Radcliffe is already overloaded/overstretched. 
People from other areas usually occupy HMO's. 
There was anti-social behaviour when the site was used as a gym. 
Manchester and Salford Councils have used HMO's to house their residents. 
No electric vehicle chargepoints are to be provided. 
The application is similar in scale to the Hawthorn Hotel, which was refused due to impacts 
on residential amenity of the nearby occupiers. 
The developers plans for the first floor is unknown (how many people would be living 
upstairs). 
Four refuse bins is the standard for an ordinary family and occupation of the proposed 
development would generate far more waste than a single family.  
The proposed HMO would have to be registered (licensed), due to its size. Doubtful that 
Bury MBC has the capacity to ensure that any HMO in the area is managed to a high 
standard.  
Radcliffe is a dilapidated run-down area which requires investment, not left to be a dumping 
ground for the unwanted and unnecessary issues in the our area. 
 
 

Page 94



Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section: No objection, subject to conditions relating to off-site highway works and 
refuse storage. 
 
Environmental Health - Pollution Control: No objection. 
 
Waste Management: No comments provided. 
 
Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity: No comments provided. 
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit: No objection, subject to a precautionary condition 
relating to bats and the provision of a bat box. 
 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EC2/1 Employment Generating Areas 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H2/4 Conversions 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations, including relevant policies in the emerging Places for Everyone Joint 
Development Plan.  
 
The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are considered to be 
in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For 
simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless there is a particular 
matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically 
mentioned. 
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
Principle of development - Employment Generating Area 
The application site is located within the Radcliffe East Employment Generating Area (EGA) 
as designated under Policy EC2/1 of the UDP. 
  
UDP Policy EC2/1 states that within the Radcliffe East EGA, the Council will only allow 
development for B1, B2 and B8 uses. Other uses will only be permitted where they 

Page 95



constitute limited development or do not substantially detract from an area's value as an 
EGA. 
  
In coming to a view on this proposal, it is necessary to consider the change in 
circumstances in Radcliffe East since the EGA designation was originally made. In 
particular, the closure and subsequent demolition of the East Lancashire Paper Mill in 2001, 
which occupied the majority of the EGA.   
  
Nevertheless, the application site remains designated as an EGA and should be considered 
within the context of UDP policy EC2/1 but, in doing so, needs to take account of the 
change in circumstances arising from the loss of a significant occupier within the EGA. 
 
The key consideration is to determine whether the proposal would substantially detract from 
the area's value as an EGA and to consider the relationship of the site with the remaining 
employment uses within this EGA.  In this respect, due to the closure of the paper mill, the 
remaining employment uses along Milltown Street and at Pioneer Mills are significantly 
detached from the application site and are separated by the River Irwell.    
  
Paragraph 122 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions need to reflect 
changes in the demand for land. Where the local planning authority considers there to be no 
reasonable prospect of an application coming forward for the use allocated in a plan: 
a) they should, as part of plan updates, reallocate the land for a more deliverable use that 
can help to address identified needs (or, if appropriate, deallocate a site which is 
undeveloped); and 
b) in the interim, prior to updating the plan, applications for alternative uses on the land 
should be supported, where the proposed use would contribute to meeting an unmet need 
for development in the area. 
  
On balance, given the closure of the East Lancashire Paper Mill, it is considered that the 
proposal would not substantially detract from the area's value as an EGA and, consequently 
would be in conformity with UDP Policy EC2/1.  
 
The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (PfE) is a joint plan covering 
nine of the ten Greater Manchester districts, including Bury, and is intended to provide the 
overarching framework to strategically manage growth across the boroughs. 
 
PfE was published in August 2021 and subsequently submitted to the Secretary of State in 
February 2022. Inspectors have been appointed to carry out an independent examination of 
the Plan with the hearing sessions commencing in November 2022 and were concluding in 
July 2023. The examination of the plan is on-going. 
 
Given the advanced stage in the preparation of PfE, it is already considered reasonable that 
the Plan (as proposed to be modified) should be given weight in the decision-making 
process in line with paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
Consequently, the principle of this application has been considered against PfE (as 
proposed to be modified).  However, the principle of this proposal does not give rise to any 
conflict with PfE policies. 
 
Principle - Housing 
For clarification, a house in multiple occupation is a form of housing tenure, where 
occupants live together forming more than one household (i.e. where facilities such as 
kitchen, bathroom or toilet facilities are shared with other tenants). 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), should be treated as a material planning 

Page 96



consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply 
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. With regard to 
HMOs, the conversion of buildings into residential can make an important contribution to the 
local housing stock and can utilise vacant or underused space more efficiently.   
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The site is located within the urban area, surrounded by established residential areas and 
close to routes well served by public transport and to facilities, goods and services. 
 
As such, the site is the most sequentially preferable for the release of land for housing. 
Furthermore, the site falls in a sustainable location with regard to services and public 
transport. Thus, the principle of the development is acceptable, subject to consideration of 
the subsequent matters. 
 
UDP Policy H2/4 - Conversions, has specific regard to effects on amenity of neighbouring 
properties, general character of the area, amenity of occupants, effects from external 
changes on the street scene and car parking and servicing requirements. This is supported 
by SPD 13 - The Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation that seeks to 
ensure that properties are of a sufficient size to accommodate the proposals and are large 
enough to offer satisfactory levels of accommodation for future residents. This document 
also seeks to ensure that HMOs are located in suitable locations. 
 
Within the Radcliffe Strategic Regeneration Framework (SRF) the site falls within the East 
Lancashire Paper Mill Site allocation for residential development (noting it as an existing 
building within the Illustrative Masterplan). The SRF has a stated objective to provide higher 
density development with strong linkages to the core of the town centre and Metrolink via 
Rectory Lane. 
 
Character of the Area and concentration of flats (HMO's) 
UDP Policy H2/4 does not specify what would constitute an over-concentration of flats or 
HMOs.   
 
According to the Bury register of licensed HMO's, there are 3 registered HMO's identified 
within the vicinity of the site, and all are over 130m from the property. On this basis, it is not 
considered that the proposed development would contribute to an over-concentration of 
HMOs within the area, in particular to an extent that would have an adverse effect on 
residential amenity and the character of the area. 
 
Layout and Design (including amenity for future occupants) 
Externally, existing roller shutters and surround railings (to windows) would be removed and 
new windows inserted to the principal and side elevations. The proposed single storey rear 
extension would have a shallow lean-to roof with a partial flat roof element and be finished 
in matching red brick and tiles. The existing external stair would be removed (as would the 
existing extensions) and access to the existing first floor flat would be internalised. Other 
alterations to the rear elevation would include the insertion of new windows at first floor. 
 
Overall, the proposal would substantially improve the appearance and character of the 
building in the street scene.  
 
Internally (at ground floor), the proposal would provide 7 ensuite bedrooms of between 10.3 
- 18.4 square metres (sq.m.) and a communal kitchen/dining area of 33 sq.m. Communal 

Page 97



access would be from the existing main entrance into a generous hallway and every 
bedroom would be accessed from this. The existing first floor flat (which is not subject to 
consideration, would be accessed from a new dedicated access via the proposed rear 
extension. 
 
The kitchen/dining area and bedrooms would satisfy HMO licensing standards (noting that 
compliance with such standards is not a material planning consideration) and each bedroom 
would include ensuite bathroom facilities. All bedrooms would also accord with the 
nationally described space standards (NDSS) (for single occupancy, as proposed). Overall, 
the internal layout of the development would provide satisfactory living accommodation for 
future occupiers of the site. 
 
The objective of the proposal is to provide good quality accommodation to a Co-Living 
standard for single occupancy of each bedroom, as noted in the description of the 
development above. As such, the bedroom sizes would far exceed the minimum HMO 
standard of 6.5 sq.m. or the NDSS standard of 7.5 sq.m.  
 
Externally, the generous rear curtilage area would be accessed from the kitchen/diner and 
from a new access gate from Cock Clod Street and this would provide ample space for 
refuse storage (and which could accommodate far in excess of the 4 bins indicated on the 
proposed plans), outdoor seating, clothes drying and bicycle storage. 
 
Given the above, the proposal is considered to accord with the requirements of UDP 
Policies H2/4 and EN1/2. 
 
Neighbouring residential amenity 
The existing building has a lawful 1st floor flat that has habitable room windows to the south, 
east and north facing elevations. The proposed alterations would not therefore introduce 
habitable room windows that would project closer to existing or future neighbouring 
properties. The ground floor windows serving proposed rooms 6 and 7 would overlook the 
proposed landscaped open space area to the west. 
 
In terms of residential amenity, the proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable and 
thus complies with UDP Policy and guidance relating to HMO's. 
 
The applicant states that prior to the submission of the application a targetted engagement 
with the properties on Cock Clod Street and Baybutt Street (these are the nearest 
neighbouring dwellings to the site) and that the response was overwhelmingly supportive for 
the building to be brought back into active use and management (which would discourage 
vandalism and anti-social behaviour (which is noted in objections). No objections have 
come from occupants these two streets and are in the main from much further afield. 
 
HMO licencing, which would be required, relates to matters of management. This is not a 
material planning consideration. 
 
Access and highway safety 
There is no specific car parking standard for HMO's in SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury. 
SPD 13 The Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation gives some general 
advice. It states that parking and road safety issues will be important considerations when 
assessing a planning application and any proposal that is considered to have a detrimental 
impact on highway safety or harm to amenity will not be permitted.  
 
HMO's are best located in sustainable areas well served by public transport and close to 
amenities, services and facilities, which can reduce the demand for vehicle ownership, and 
hence parking. In this regard, the application site is in a highly accessible area and within 

Page 98



200m of bus stops on Spring Lane, 450m of Radcliffe Metrolink station and 850m of 
Radcliffe Bus Station. In relation to access to goods, services and recreation facilities, the 
site is within 700m of Radcliffe town centre and the Radcliffe Hub (which is under 
construction). The site clearly in a highly accessible area. 
 
Both Cock Clod Street and Church Street East would be subject to alterations and 
improvements in relation to the reserved matters application for the adjacent 400 dwelling 
residential scheme. However, these are cognisant of the existing on-street parking 
arrangement for the existing neighbouring dwellings.   
 
Parking provision 
There is no parking provision proposed at this site and this is the historical situation in 
relation to the former public house (as terraced dwellings used to flank the building to the 
west). 
 
Whilst it is generally recognised that car ownership tends to be lower for those who occupy 
HMOs compared to other households (and partricularly given the highly sustainable location 
of the site). Further, SPD11 does not specify any parking standards in relation to either 
HMOs or public houses, the lawful use of the premises. Therefore, to substitute one use for 
another is likely to have no additional impacts on parking demand. Furthermore, the 
proposal would include cycle storage provision so that occupants would have an alternative 
to public transport and/or walking. 
 
Occupation of a 7-bedroom HMO could have the potential to generate some demand for car 
parking. Whilst some residents of the HMO may not require access to a car, there is no 
means to secure this through the planning system and any cars associated with the use 
would have to park on nearby streets alongside other residents in the locality.  The 
Highway Authority considers there are no highway safety reasons to resist these proposals 
given the accessible location of the site. 
 
Given the location of the site in relative to access to good quality public transport options 
and goods, recreation and services together with the cycle storage proposed, it is 
considered that it would not be sustainable or justified to refuse the proposal on 
traffic/parking grounds.   
 
In terms of servicing the site, the Council's Waste Management Service has indicated that 
the level of occupancy would necessitate the need to provide 4 x 1100 litre refuse bins; 2 to 
be used for general rubbish and 2 to be used for the paper and plastic recycling service 
offered by the Council.  The applicant has demonstrated that this level of refuse storage 
provision can be accommodated within the rear yard area, subject to the rear yard gate 
being widened.  Given an adopted highway exists to the rear of the site, the Highway 
Authority has asked for a condition to be imposed requiring details of this, to ensure the 
adopted highway is not compromised by this element of the proposals.  Such a condition is 
duly recommended, along with a condition requiring the necessary refuse storage provision 
to be provided. 
 
Subject to the recommended planning conditions, the proposal would be acceptable and 
would accord with UDP policies H2/4, HT2/4 and SPD13 with regard to HMO development.   
Other matters 
Flooding - The site is located within Flood Zone 2 and is therefore supported by a Flood 
Risk Assessment, which confirms that the proposal is of a more vulnerable classification 
and that the site is considered to be at a low to moderate risk of flooding of fluvial flooding 
(from rivers or canals), subject to internal mitigation measures (e.g. raised wiring and power 
outlets/waterproof plasterboard), which could be secured by condition. 
 

Page 99



Ecology - The GMEU have confirmed that the proposal would not have uny unacceptable 
impact upon ecological interests and that the provision of one bat box should be secured by 
condition. 
 
Response to objections 
It is considered that the above assessment has regard to many of the matters raised in the 
objections to the proposal. Of the remaining issues: 
 
Councillor A Booth 
- The communal living area shows one sink and one hob which does not seem a reasonable 
facility for 7 individuals/7 couples (assuming upstairs has its own kitchen). 
There are 7 dining chairs and 6 other chairs depicted which also does not seem enough if 
these are indeed double rooms (and upstairs has its own lounge/diner).   
 
Matters of internal facilities/fixtures are not a material planning consideration and are 
subject to the HMO licensing regime. 
 
- The application states they will be using the main sewer but contradicts itself by saying 
they won't be connecting to the main drain. 
 
The property is already linked to United Utilities assets for drainage. 
 
- The plans show 4 refuse bins in the back yard. This is the standard for an ordinary family 
home where meals etc. are shared. 7-12+ individually rented rooms will generate far more 
waste than a single family. As this is a commercial enterprise, they should have commercial 
waste bins to avoid fly tipping and rats.  
 
There is ample space in the rear garden area to store more bins if this proves to be 
necessary. It is within the gift of the developer to determine whether to engage a 
commercial waste contractor. 
 
- If this development is approved, it will have to be a registered HMO due to its size. I am 
not confident that Bury MBC have the capacity to ensure any HMO in the area is managed 
to a high standard, as they already have a number of registered HMO's that are currently 
out of licence.  
 
This is not a material planning consideration and relates to the HMO licensing regime. 
 
Councillor Carol Birchmore 
- The area close to the proposed development consist of 2 and 3 bedroom terraced housing 
and residents have expressed concerns about the potential noise and the risk of anti-social 
behaviour a seven bedroom HMO could bring.  
 
No objections have been received from the nearest properties at Cock Clod Street and 
Baybutt Street. The proposal would introduce a viable new use and bring occupation to a 
currently vacant building that is subject to attack and vandalism (this is noted as a present 
problem in the objections). No evidence has been presented that would demonstrate that 
potential occupants would cause anti-social behaviour problems. The ground floor (which is 
the subject of the proposal) would be occupied by 7 individuals sharing common facilities. 
 
Other representations 
- The proposal should be considered with respect to the on-going Radcliffe Strategic 
Regeneration Framework (RSRF). 
 
The proposal has been assessed against the relevant policies of the UDP and the National 

Page 100



Planning Policy Framework, as required. Nevertheless, the site falls within a housing 
regeneration area in the RSRF and adjacent to a key pedestrian route into the town centre. 
 
- People from other areas usually occupy HMO's. Manchester and Salford Councils have 
used HMO's to house their residents. 
 
Where a potential occupier is from or the housing policies in other areas is not a material 
planning consideration. 
 
- No electric vehicle chargepoints are to be provided. 
 
The proposal would not have any off-street parking spaces. 
 
- The application is similar in scale to the Hawthorn Hotel (ref. 70000), which was refused 
due to impacts on residential amenity of the nearby occupiers. 
 
Every application is to be considered on its individual merits and this proposal is significantly 
smaller in scale and of a different nature and thus an entirely different proposition. The 
above assessment finds that the proposal would not be contrary to the relevant policies or 
have any unacceptable impacts. 
 
- Radcliffe is a dilapidated run-down area which requires investment, not left to be a 
dumping ground for the unwanted and unnecessary issues in the our area. 
 
The proposal would necessitate significant investment in a currently vacant and unkempt 
site to bring it back into a viable new use. 
 
CONCLUSION 
There is fallback position of the lawful public house and has been taken into account in 
assessing the appropriateness of the proposal.   
 
The proposal would bring back into viable long-term use a property has been vacant for 
many years and that has had intervening unauthorised uses that representations suggest 
had associated anti-social behaviour issues. 
 
The above assessment demonstrates that the proposal is acceptable in principle finds that 
no unacceptable impacts would pertain and that the proposal would deliver a good quality of 
accommodation. 
 
Given the above, the proposal would be compliant with the above stated UDP policies and 
the NPPF. Therefore, in accordance with the Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act, the proposal merits approval. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 

Page 101



Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings 
Site Location Plan: Existing Site Plan (Dwg No. 21/STE/199/PL) 
Proposed Site Plan (Dwg No. 21/STE/200/PL) 
Proposed Floor Plans (Dwg No. 21STE/205/PL) 
Proposed Elevations (Dwg No. 21/STE/206/PL) 
and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the 
drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. The external finishing materials for the proposal hereby approved shall match 
those of the existing building. 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

4. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
mitigation measures set out in the flood risk mitigation measures in the submitted 
Flood Risk Assessment (Ref. AEG02958_M26_Manchester_01) by Aegaea.   
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding pursuant to the NPPF and UDP Policy 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk.  

 

5. A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the erection of any external walls of the development. The 
contents of the scheme should also include the provision of a bat box, which shall 
be installed prior to first occupation. The approved landscaping scheme shall 
thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months from the date the dwelling is 
first occupied or within the first available tree planting season and any trees, 
hedgerows or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely damaged or becoming 
severely diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs 
of a similar size or species to those originally required to be planted.   
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and 
EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.  

 

6. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, the use hereby 
approved shall not be commenced unless and until full details of the reinstatement 
of the redundant vehicular access to the site from Cock Clod Street and formation 
of the two yard/entrance pedestrian accesses, incorporating the reinstatement of 
the redundant access to adjacent footway levels, demarcation of the limits of the 
(currently) unadopted highway, provision of inward opening pedestrian gates, level 
pedestrian accesses at the back of the footway and all associated highway 
remedial and accommodation works within the curtilage of the site, have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The details subsequently approved shall 
be implemented satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to the use hereby 
approved commencing.  
Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of road safety and to 

Page 102



maintain the integrity of the adopted highway, pursuant to Bury Unitary 
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 

7. The bin storage facilities shall be made available prior to the use hereby approved 
commencing and maintained thereafter. 
Reason. To ensure that adequate bin storage arrangements are provided within 
the curtilage of each dwelling, pursuant to policies H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

8. The secure cycle storage facilities indicated in the approved plans shall be 
provided in full before the development hereby approved is first brought into use 
and shall thereafter remain available for use for the lifetime of the development. 
Reason. To ensure adequate cycle storage and in order to promote sustainable 
means of travel pursuant to policy HT6/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Dean Clapworthy on 0161 253 5317 

Page 103



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 70136

21 Church Street East, Radcliffe

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

21

6

1
6

1

1
3

Sub Sta
El

6

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
O

L
L

IT
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

CUNLIFFE STREET

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

C
O

C
K

 C
L

O
D

 S
T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

Y
B

U
T

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T 5

6

3

42
1

7

Viewpoints 

Page 104



70136 

Photo 1 - Area to the west of the building to become a landscaped area 

 

Photo 2 - Panning right to side of subject building 

 

Page 105



70136 

Photo 3 - Subject building from the east 

 

Photo 4 - Principal and east side elevation 

 

Page 106



70136 

Photo 5 - Rear elevation 

 

Photo 6 - East elevation and boundary wall to Cock Clod Street 

 

Page 107



70136 

Photo 7 - South along Cock Clod Street to site 

 

Page 108



0 20m

1:200

105 15

0

1:1250

125m5025 10075

P
age 109

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
CUNLIFFE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
COCK CLOD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
POLLITT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
BAYBUTT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
RECTORY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
CHURCH STREET EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Ints

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Amendments

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Scale@A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Rev.

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
21 CHURCH STREET EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
RADCLIFFE, M26 2PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
SITE LOCATION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
EXISTING SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
TW

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
JULY 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
1 : 100

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
21STE/199/PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
SITE LOCATION PLAN (322sqm) 1:1250@A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
EXISTING SITE PLAN 1:200@A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
REFECTORY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
COCK CLOD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
GRASSED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
REAR YARD



0 20m

1:200

105 15

P
age 110

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
FLAT  REAR YARD 43sqm

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
HMO 1 REAR YARD 90sqm

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Ints

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Amendments

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Scale@A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Rev.

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
21 CHURCH STREET EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
RADCLIFFE, M26 2PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
TW

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
JULY 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
1 : 100

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
21STE/200/PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
PROPOSED SITE PLAN 1:200@A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
REFECTORY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
COCK CLOD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
BROKEN LINES INDICATE EXISTING SINGLE STOREY OUTRIGGERS TO BE DEMOLISHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
NEW GREY SLATE TILED ROOF TO INFILL/FULL LENGTH SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
NEW FLAT ROOF OVER EXTENDED REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
NEW BOUNDARY WALL BETWEEN HMO AND EXISTING FF FLATS REAR YARDS, 1800mm HIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
NEW SECURE ACCESS GATE TO HMO REAR YARD/ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
NEW SECURE ACCESS GATE TO FF FLAT REAR YARD/ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
NEW MAIN ENTRANCE TO FF HMO 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
NEW MAIN ENTRANCE TO GF HMO 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
BIN STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
BIN STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
BENCH  SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
BENCH  SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
BENCH  SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
BENCH  SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
METAL CYCLE STORE FOR 6no CYCLES, SEE DETAILS BELOW RIGHT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
METAL SHED FOR 6no CYCLES BEING 2740mm DEEP AND 1580mm WIDE, WITH A HEIGHT OF 2030mm, POLICE APPROVED. SECURE WITH PADLOCK TO AMIN OF SOLD SECURE SILVER STANDARD. ALSO WITHIN UNIT PROVIDE 3no SHEFFIELD RACKS SECURED TO A SOLID FOUNDATION.



0 2 10m

1:100

4 86

P
age 111

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
EXISTING REAR ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Ints

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Amendments

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Scale@A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Rev.

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
21 CHURCH STREET EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
RADCLIFFE, M26 2PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
EXISTING ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
TW

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
JULY 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
1 : 100

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
21STE/202/PL



0 2 10m

1:100

4 86

P
age 112

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
NEW FLAT ROOF OVER EXTENDED SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
FULL REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION, IN LINE WITH EXISTING SINGLE STOREY OUTRIGGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
FULL REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION, IN LINE WITH EXISTING SINGLE STOREY OUTRIGGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
NEW FLAT ROOF OVER EXTENDED SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
NEW MAIN ENTRANCE TO EXISTING FF FLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
NEW REAR DOOR TO YARD FOR HMO, WITH NEW REAR WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
NEW PITCHED TILED ROOF OVER REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
REMOVE ALL GF WINDOW SHUTTERS AND SURROUND RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
REMOVE ALL GF WINDOW SHUTTERS AND SURROUND RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
REPLACE EXISTING DOOR WITH NEW WINDOW TO LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION 1:100 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
NEW FLAT ROOF OVER EXTENDED SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
FULL REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION, IN LINE WITH EXISTING SINGLE STOREY OUTRIGGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
FULL REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION, IN LINE WITH EXISTING SINGLE STOREY OUTRIGGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
NEW FLAT ROOF OVER EXTENDED SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
REMOVE ALL GF WINDOW SHUTTERS AND SURROUND RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
REPLACE EXISTING DOOR WITH NEW WINDOW TO LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Ints

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Amendments

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Scale@A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
Rev.

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
21 CHURCH STREET EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
RADCLIFFE, M26 2PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
TW

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
JULY 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
1 : 100

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
21STE/206/PL



 
 
Ward: Radcliffe - East Item   07 

 
Applicant: Mr Richard Barfoot 
 
Location: 36 Irwell Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1LR 

 
Proposal: Change of use from dwellinghouse (Class C3) to children's residential care home 

(Class C2) 
 
Application Ref:   70256/Full Target Date:  24/01/2024 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The proposal relates to a traditional 5-bedroomed end terraced property on a residential 
street. The property has a large two storey outrigger at the rear. It is immediately bounded 
by similar properties to the east and west, further housing to the north on the opposing side 
of Irwell Street (served by dedicated car parks). Coronation Park is loacted beyond a rear 
allleyway serving all dwellings on the south side of the street and rises above the rear of the 
dwellings. The subject property has a small rear yard area. Resident's cars (those who live 
on the south side of Irwell Street) generally rely on on-street parking. 
 
The proposal is for the change of use from the current 5 bedroom dwellinghouse (Class C3) 
to children's residential care home (Class C2) for the occu[pation of up to 3 children and 
staff. No alterations are proposed to either the external elevations or the room layout.  
 
The existing dwelling presently comprises 3 reception rooms with kitchen at ground floor 
and 5 bedrooms at first floor. 
 
The supporting statements confirm that the home would be used for the care of 3 children 
between 10-18 years old (of any gender and having sufferred with any trauma or diagnosed 
with mental health illness). They would receive 1 to 1 care from appropriately qualified staff 
and there would be a maximum of 4 staff (1 manager - present 09:00 - 17:00 and 3 carers 
(2 on a 24 hour shift and 2 on a 12 hour shift).  
 
Resident children would be enrolled in school, although some may be home schooled 
depending on circumstances and the level of care required. Specialist treatment (e.g. 
psychologist/therapist) is likely to occur off site. Children would be supported to have 
independent time in a risk assessed and managed way, mirroring how a parent would do 
(not to be able to come and go as they pleased). There would be curfews and the house 
would be locked at a certain time, reflecting that of a family home and the security and 
wellbeing of young people.  
 
The current occupiers of the property have 3 vehicles parked on the street (occasionally 4 
due to an adult child of the owner). The submission notes that there are public car parks at 
the end of Irwell Street (not the residents only car parks) and Stand Lane and that St. John's 
Street, close to the site has unrestricted parking (in addition to Irwell Street). It is expected 
that some of the staff will drive, but this cannot be determined at this stage (as they are yet 
to be employed). It notes that Radcliffe has good public transport links. 
 
 
Relevant Planning History 

Page 113



No relevant history. 
 
Publicity 
Direct notification undertaken on 01/12/2023 and 12/12/2023. Representations received 
from 13 separate addresses raising objections that can be summarised as follows: 
 
Highways and parking 
Parking on the street is already at full capacity and current residents struggle to park. 
The site would not provide dedicated off-street parking for staff/visitors. 
Adjjacent streets that give access to Irwell Street are congested with parked cars and 
additional vehicles could exacerbate existing problems and block access e.g. for refuse 
vehicles. 
The street is blocked from regular visits from ambulances and the street is a dead end. 
The submission misrepresents the parking situation on Irwell Street. The car parks noted in 
the parking evidence are for residents of Six Town Housing only, which may not be at full 
capacity due to low car ownership. Irwell Street is normally at full capacity. 
 
Amenity 
There are already 2 care facilities within 100m of the site that cause problems. The addition 
of another care home with a 24 hour open door policy for young people with complex mental 
health issues, which is attached to neighbouring dwellings in a residential neighbourhood, 
would have a negative impact due to noise, disturbance and the safety of the occupants and 
the local community. 
There is a first-floor window that opens up over neighbouring gardens (that would enable 
occupants to launch objects). 
The use would encourage other young adults to the area, which would have a negative 
impact on younger children and generate anti-social behaviour. 
The park adjacent to the site suffers from anti-social behaviour/drug users, which would 
therefore be unsuitable for the intended vulnerable occupiers. Other violent incidents have 
occurred in the locality. 
The use would add to noise pollution. 
It would be inappropriate to operate a business use in a residential street. 
A mental home in the middle of a block of terrace houses is highly inappropriate. The 
patients at Prestwich escaped often. What's to stop them escaping from the house and 
bothering people in the community? 
 
Other matters 
The proposed use would impact on house prices. 
It would put more pressure on already stretched local services e.g. doctors, dentists. 
Would modifications be required to access gates and boundary walls to make them safe 
and secure? 
If approved, this would set a precedent that would alter the fabric of the community. 
There has been a lack of community consultation. 
Alternative locations should be considered that takes into account proximity to medical 
facilities, public transport and a more appropriate environment for residents. 
The proposal would be a strain on emergency services and it should be verified whether 
infrastructure such as hospitals and police services can provide adequate support. 
 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section: No objection. 
 
Environmental Health - Pollution Control: The proposed site is in a row of terraced 
houses. Unable to determine if the end users would cause noise nuisance due to their 
mental health. Unable to carry out noise assessment for this. Don't know what impact noise 

Page 114



could have on neighbouring houses. 
 
Public comments are noted and there are concerns with regards ASB. This is something 
that EH cannot action either.  
 
Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity: Comments to be reported. 
 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
CF1 Proposals for New and Improved Community Facilities 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
CF3 Social Services 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
H4/2 Special Needs Housing 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the adopted Bury Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) and the Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan (PfE), 
together with other relevant material planning considerations. The policies of the UDP that 
have been used to assess this application are considered to be in accordance with the 
NPPF and as such are material planning considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy 
will be referred to in the report, unless there is a particular matter to highlight arising from 
the NPPF where it would otherwise be specifically mentioned. 
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
Section 149 of the Equality Act places a general duty on public bodies to have due regard 
to the need to eliminate discrimination and promote equality with regard to those with 
protected characteristics such as age, race, disability, religion or belief, gender and sex and 
to foster good relations between different groups when discharging it functions. It is not 
considered that any one group would be disadvantaged by the proposed development, 
however, children between the ages of 10-18 who suffer from trauma / have been 
diagnosed with a mental illness (which may be considered a disability) would benefit from 
the proposal.  As such, there would be benefits to groups with protected characteristics. 
 
Policy 
The NPPF advocates the objectives to achieve sustainable development. Paragraph 8 
states that one such objective is to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities by 
fostering well-designed and safe built environments with accessible services and open 
spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities' health, social and 
cultural well-being.  
 
Chapter 8 of the NPPF relates to promoting healthy and safe communities and paragraph 
96 states that policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe 
places which, amongst things, promote social interaction, are safe and accessible and 
enable and support healthy lifestyles. 
 

Page 115



Paragraph 97 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should take into 
account and support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, social and cultural 
well-being for all sections of the community.  
 
Policy CF1/1 - Location of Community Facilities gives regard to factors including impact on 
residential amenity, traffic generation and parking, scale and size of development, 
accessibility to shops and services, suitability of the chosen location, public transport and 
needs/requirements of those with a physical disability.   
 
Policy CF3 - Social Services, considers favourably proposals for the provision of new, and 
the improvement of, existing facilities for children, young and the elderly, those with mental 
health or physical and special needs, encouraged to live in the local community rather than 
in large institutions.  Support for new and improved services is supported providing that 
there is no conflict with existing residential amenity and the environment.  
 
Policy H4/2 - Special Needs Housing - seeks to support the provision of special needs 
housing recognising that specialist accommodation is needed for the most vulnerable 
members of society. Regard is given to factors including the convenience of location to 
shops, public transport and community facilities, location of health care facilities, gradient 
and accessibility to public transport, parking and amenity provision and high standards of 
design, layout and landscaping to achieve a satisfactory environment. 
 
Principle 
Objections refer to the proposal being inappropriate in a (family orientated) residential area, 
by reason of traffic congestion/lack of parking, noise, anti-social behaviour/community 
safety and access for occupants to social and health facilities and public transport. 
 
The proposal relates to an end-terraced 5 bedroom family dwelling located within a 
well-established residential area. The application proposes to provide living accommodation 
for children in a setting that would be as close to a family environment as practicable. The 
property would not be required to be extended or altered and permanent residents (i.e. the 
children) and support carers would occupy the dwelling in a manner broadly akin to 
occupation by a family. It is also noted that the property could be utilised as a 6 bedroom 
house in multiple occupation without the need for planning permission. 
 
The principle of the development would therefore be acceptable. Given the above, the 
proposed use would provide a valuable facility for more vulnerable members of society and 
as such, would be compliant with the above UDP policies and the principles of the NPPF.  
 
Design and visual amenity 
The proposed layout or the appearance of the property would not change from the current 
arrangements. 
 
Impact on residential amenity 
The objections concerning impacts on residential amenity are reported above. 
 
It is considered that the character and the scale of the use would be consistent with that of 
a family household occupying the existing 5-bedroom dwelling. One of the key objectives of 
the proposal is to provide an environment which would be consistent with 'normal' 
residential living conditions and the regularity of daily living, reflecting that of a family home 
and providing security and the wellbeing of young people. It is intended the care home 
would function discreetly within the neighbourhood.  
 
The supporting information sets out that the children would occupy the dwelling in a manner 
that would not be materially different to how a family would occupy it. Each child would have 

Page 116



their own bedroom and use of communal spaces (e.g. kitchen/dining room/lounge), which 
would be shared between occupants. The children would attend school or be home 
schooled and would socialise and partake in recreational activities, as one would expect a 
child would when in a typical family setting. 
 
Changeover between staff would occur twice a day and would entail the transition of two 
staff early morning and evening. A Home Manager would be in attendance during typical 
office hours. 
 
Clearly, households can take many forms and the current dwelling could be occupied by a 
family of up to around 6 individuals (possibly more if a reception room was to be utilised as 
bedroom). Furthermore, without planning permission, the dwelling could be utilised as a 
house in multiple occupation for up to 6 occupants. 
 
Some objections refer to the potential for anti-social behaviour and allude to the 'type' of 
occupants, claiming that they may pose a danger for existing residents due to abusive, 
threatening and violent behaviour.  
 
In relation to other proposals for a care home of a similar scale and nature, Greater 
Manchester Police have not supported such claims, stating that such uses are best situated 
within the community (as in this case). Regardless, the behavioural characteristics of 
individuals that may come to occupy a care home is not a material planning consideration. 
The assessment of impact on residential amenity relates to the nature of occupation (as a 
care home) and not (assumptions concerning) the character of individuals. The property 
would be occupied by children between the ages of 10-18, living as a family would and 
cared for by qualified staff. The objective would be to offer the best possible outcome for 
children and to prepare them for adulthood. The objective would be that occupation of the 
property would be passively routine and it would function akin to a typical residential 
dwelling. 
 
The response of GM Police to this specific proposal will be reported in the supplementary 
report. 
 
Although the Council's Environmental Health Officer is unable to determine if the end users 
would cause noise nuisance, as noted above, the property would be occupied as would a 
'typical' family would occupy a dwelling. Similarly, potential noise nuisance from the 
occupation of the property by a family could not be determined (before occupation). 
 
Given such circumstances, and the potential alternative iterations for occupation of the 
dwelling, it is not considered that the proposed change of use of the dwelling would have a 
materially greater impact upon neighbouring amenity. Occupants would engage in 
education, social and recreational activities, as any child could when occupying the dwelling 
as a family home and carers would manage and supervise in a manner similar to that of 
parents. 
 
It is therefore considered that the proposal would not conflict with the character of the area 
or have an adverse impact on the amenity of local residents. Given the above, the proposal 
would therefore comply with UDP Policies CF1/1, CF3, H3/1, EN1/2 and EN7/2.  
 
Highways issues 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPD) note 11 - Parking Standards in Bury, sets a 
maximum standard for type of C2 care home at a rate of 1 space per 4 beds. Applications 
are to be assessed on their own merits and in consideration of their location and nature of 
intended occupation.  
 

Page 117



Objections in relation to traffic, parking congestion and highway safety are outlined above.  
 
The applicable parking standard is 1 space for every 4 beds. The applicable standard for 4 
plus bedroom dwellings is a maximum 3 spaces.   
 
Whilst the property does not benefit from off-street parking, the site is located within the 
urban area of Radcliffe, within an approximately 600m or 800m walk from Radcliffe Bus 
Station and Metrolink Stations respectively. Thus, the site is in a highly sustainable location.  
By contrast, as a 5-bed dwelling, the property could potentially be occupied by up to 5 car 
owners (adult children may be car owners), plus there could be additional trips to the site by 
visitors, friends/family and from deliveries or servicing requirements associated with day to 
day living. 
 
On-street parking is not restricted and there are public car parks in the locality and within 
easy walking distance. Vehicles would be able to park freely in the vicinity without 
obstructing the carriageway or footway. Given that the site is located in a high accessibility 
area, it would be reasonable to consider that some staff members could travel by public 
transport (but this could not be controlled). 
 
Unitary Development Plan Policy H4/2 - Special Needs Housing requires consideration of 
the sites gradient. However, the proposal would not cater for those with physical disabilities 
and regardless, the gradient of the short private front forecourt is level with a low step. 
 
SPD 11 indicates that cycle storage provision should be provided for two bicycles. This 
could be secured by condition. 
 
The Highway Officer does not object to the proposal.  
 
In such circumstances, it is not considered that the proposal would have unacceptable 
impacts on highway safety that would warrant or sustain an objection to the application. 
Paragraph 115 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused 
on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.  
 
Response to objectors 
Many matters raised in objections are not material to the assessment and determination of 
the planning application. Therefore, the matters referred to below omit those that have been 
addressed in the above assessment or where they would not be material. 
 
- The submission misrepresents the parking situation on Irwell Street. The car parks noted 
in the parking evidence are for residents of Six Town Housing only, which may not be at full 
capacity due to low car ownership. Irwell Street is normally at full capacity. 
 
This is noted and the section above relating to 'Highway issues' covers this point. 
 
- There is a first floor window that opens up over neighbouring gardens (that would enable 
occupants to launch objects). 
 
This could potentially occur with occupation of the property as a dwelling. 
 
- The park adjacent to the site suffers from anti-social behaviour/drug users, which would 
therefore be unsuitable for the intended vulnerable occupiers. Other violent incidents have 
occurred in the locality. 
 
This is noted in the representation as a current issue. The proposed use would be operated 

Page 118



as would a dwelling occupied by a family with the well-being and supervision of the child 
occupiers being a central objective. 
 
- The proposed use would impact on house prices. 
 
Such a perception is not a material planning consideration. 
 
- It would put more pressure on already stretched local services e.g. doctors, dentists. It 
should be verified whether infrastructure such as hospitals and police services can provide 
adequate support. 
 
The proposal in minor in scale and the site would be occupied as a family could occupy the 
present dwelling (with the associated requirements for access to such local services). 
 
- Would modifications be required to access gates and boundary walls to make them safe 
and secure? 
 
This is not a material planning consideration. 
 
- If approved, this would set a precedent that would alter the fabric of the community. 
 
Each application would be considered on its merits and assessed against the relevant 
planning policies and material considerations. 
 
- There has been a lack of community consultation. 
 
The proposal was advertised as required in the relevant Regulations (resulting in 13 
objections). 
 
CONCLUSION 
Whilst there are objections to the proposal, the development has been assessed as not 
having any unacceptable impacts upon general amenity and safety of neighbours and 
occupiers and highway safety. 
 
Given the above, the proposal would be compliant with the above stated UDP policies and 
the NPPF. Therefore, in accordance with the Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act, the proposal merits approval. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 

Page 119



1990. 
 

2. This decision relates to drawings 
Location Plan dated 20/11/2023 
Proposed Site Plan (Dwg No. 01A) 
Existing and Proposed Roof Plan (Dwg No. 04) 
Existing and Proposed Elevations (Dwg No. 05) 
Proposed Floor Plans (Dwg No. 06) 
and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the 
drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. The premises to which this approval relates shall be used for residential care only 
and for no other purpose (including any other purpose in Class C2 of the Schedule 
to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or in any provision 
equivalent to that class in any statutory instrument revoking or re-enacting that 
Order with or without modification). 
Reason.  To ensure the intensification and scale of uses in the property does not 
extend beyond acceptable levels which could cause impact to residential amenity 
and highway safety in respect of the associated parking, access and servicing 
requirements or general activity and disturbance pursuant to policies EN1/2 - 
Townscape and Built Design,  CF3 - Social Services, H4/2 - Special Needs 
Housing,  HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development and HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  

 

4. The use of the building hereby approved shall not commence until secure cycle 
parking for two bicycles have been provided at the site. The facility shall remain 
available for users of the development thereafter. 
Reason. To secure satisfactory cycle facilities on site and in accordance with 
Unitary Development Policies HT6 - Pedestrians and Cyclists; HT6/1 - Pedestrians 
and Cycle Movement. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Dean Clapworthy on 0161 253 5317 

Page 120



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO

© Crown Copyright and database right (2023). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

11

14

58

15

467

1

10

8

Close

Irwell

9

6

22

34

Graveyard

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
T
 JO

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

IR
W

ELL S
TREET

66.5m

1

2

36 Irwell Street, Radcliffe

70256

Viewpoints

Page 121



70256 

Photo 1 - Rear of 36 Irwell Street 

 

Photo 2 –  Irwell Street (no. 36 - white fronted, centre) 

 

Page 122



36 Irwell Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1LR

Richard Barfoot

created on Plotted Scale - 1:1,250

00 25 m25 m 50 m50 m
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100060020© Crown Copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100060020

Page 123



BINS 

LOCATION

Scale @ A3

Drwg ref:

By

Date No.

Rev

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE

THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

1:500

50 25 20 15 10 5 0m

JL

EXISTING AND PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN36 Irwell Street
Radcliffe
Manchester  M26 1LR

16.10.2023

36IrwellStreetExistingAndProposedBlockPlanV2

01A

N

A 29.11.2023  BINS

P
age 124



ROOF PLAN

Scale @ A3

Drwg ref:

By

Date No.

Rev

   10m

       

5 4 3 2 1 0

1:100

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE

THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

EXISTING AND PROPOSED ROOF PLAN36 Irwell Street
Radcliffe
Manchester  M26 1LR

16.10.2023

JL

36IrwellStreetExistingRoofPlanV1

04

P
age 125



Ground floor

0

First floor

2700

NORTHWEST (FRONT) ELEVATION

4

05

Ground floor

0

First floor

2700

SOUTHEAST (REAR) ELEVATIONREAR BOUNDARY 

FENCE SHOWN 

DOTTED FOR CLARITY

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

SOUTHWEST ELEVATION

NORTHEAST ELEVATION/SECTION

SECTION THROUGH 
ADJACENT PROPERTY

Scale @ A3

Drwg ref:

By

Date No.

Rev

   10m

       

5 4 3 2 1 0

1:100

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE

THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

EXISTING AND PROPOSED ELEVATIONS36 Irwell Street
Radcliffe
Manchester  M26 1LR

16.10.2023

JL

36IrwellStreetExistingElevationsV2

05

P
age 126



GROUND FLOOR PLAN

LOUNGE

21.5sqm

LOUNGE 2

14.8sqm

KITCHEN

15.7sqm

DINING ROOM

14.3sqm

UP

4

08

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

YOUNG 

PERSON'S 

BEDROOM 1

13.9sqm

STAFF 

BEDROOM 

5.9sqm

OFFICE/STAFF 

ROOM

12.8sqm

BATHROOM

YOUNG 

PERSON'S 

BEDROOM 2

9.4sqm

YOUNG 

PERSON'S 

BEDROOM 3

15.1sqm

wc

BASEMENT

UP

NOTE: EXISTING BASEMENT 

DISUSED

Scale @ A3

Drwg ref:

By

Date No.

Rev

   10m

       

5 4 3 2 1 0

1:100

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE

THIS DRAWING IS NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS36 Irwell Street
Radcliffe
Manchester  M26 1LR

16.10.2023

JL

36IrwellStreetExistingPlansAndRoofPlanV2

06

TOTAL INTERNAL FLOOR AREA: 171.2sqm

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��������������������������

�
���	�

�
����������������� �

�
�������	�

�
�������������������

�
�����������	�

�
����������������������������

�
��������������	�

�
����������

� �

�
� ��������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
����������!�����	�

"#$%
&'&()
$%
*$+#$,
+#(
&-./$0
123'$,




�
����� 	�

�
"#(
)(&2)+
/$%+%4

5(0(,+
1(/(6'+(1
&/',,$,6
1(0$%$2,%
%$,0(
+#(
/'%+
788�

�
��������9�
�������������������



"#(
8233$++((
$%
)(0233(,1(1
+2
+#(
,2+(
+#(
)(&2)+

',1
'&&(,1$0(%


�
�����������	�

�

�
�:�;:��<��=>?!�:@=A��
���>�B:�C	�



D2
+#(
&)2&2%'/%
'002)1
*$+#
+#(
72/$0E

F)'3(*2)GH

 I(%
 
 


�<�<�>�J<����<K���LML��NN=A��	�
�=J�JA=�@��>;@=A�<=:J?��JO��=?C�
�:J?=O���<=:J?	�



PQ(0-+$R(
D$)(0+2)
2S
5(%2-)0(%
+2
'1R$%(

)(6')1$,6
)$%G
3','6(3(,+


�
�<�<�>�J<�����T�A�<=U���=��A<:��
:N���?:��A�?	�

�
VWX

�

�
�Y��@=<�!�=U��?=<��=>;@=A�<=:J?	�



V2
 





�
�:J?=O���O�����:J=<:�=JZ��NN=A��	�



[\]

�
�

�
^��O?�NN�A<�O	�

�
X//
/$%+(1


�
�A��<=J���J<���?<	�
�

�
VWX


�

Z�JO��
�<�>�

_

������������������

̀

Page 129

Agenda Item 5



���������	�
����  ������
��


�����������������
������ ���!��"��#��$�

%��&�

����������
'�&(���������

)��"�'�&(��#� *���+��#�

�
�

� � �

������+,��-&&������ �-&&������ �-�+��.� �


�

  

 � � �

�
/01 2�����
3��
�
%��#��#���&-+��.,���$-����-�����*.�++�+ ��-+��-.��-&&������-������"�.� ���"�$.�++�+ �
"���#�-+#�&�"��(,�����-������#�-�������-�+��.4��
�
501 �
��63��
�
�
%�����������&�(��+-��"4
�
�

�
6789:;2<=>?@:ABC	<DE@8�F�:BE
�
�:B9<=9�E9<7G8�F
�
H���"�'��+-I�J��"�-��H���.-$&�+��'�+� �&�+���
*.�++�+ ��������#I�H�$���&�+���-��K�#-����#��+"�K� �.���-+�
L�M+-N#.�,�*.����
O��,�O!P�Q�R�

�EG�1/S/5TUT5V/
�W<7G�C0W<@B:XYA@Z0?:[0A>

\
]

Page 130



����������������	�
�������������������	���
����

�	���� ���������������� �����������

������ !"�#$%&'�

()*+)�,--)+./0�1234*)25�/65�7)/6825�9:;9<;<9<=�

()*+)�/--)+./0�>+)�-)+-+?25�@A/6B2�+>�4?2�>)+C�>)+C�@+CC2)@*/0D�E4?*62??�/65�?2).*@2�FG0/??�
HI�8+�C*J25�4?2�*6@045*6B�<�K+L�M0/8?�FG0/??�GNI�

O<�P+08+6�Q8)228D�P4)RD�PST�9SU�
(NV(,�W��X�YZ�[�\T]T\�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

,--)+.2�̀*8A�G+65*8*+6?�<\;9O;<9<=�

<�6+L�Q-)*6a02)�8/6a?�FO9L:bC�5*/C282)D�:LbC�A2*BA8I�8+�*6@0452�/�?C/00�a*+?a�/65�-4C-�)++C�
*̀8A�71(�A+4?*6B�̀*8A�/??+@*/825�-*-2̀ +)a�8+�@+662@8�8A2�8/6a?�/65�-4C-�)++C�

c28)+?R0D�P)*5B2�d/00�S/62D�P4)RD�PST�]Ke�
MfS�W��X�YZ�[�]9<bO�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

12>4?25�O];9O;<9<=�

Q*6B02�?8+)2R�2J826?*+6�/8�)2/)�8+�>+)C�O�6+L�B)+465�>0++)�>0/8�

<O<,�P200�S/62D�P4)RD�PST�\dQ�
MfS�W��X�YZ�[�]9<bT�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

12>4?25�9];9<;<9<=�

12-0/@2�2J*?8*6B�̀*65+̀ ?�/65�5++)?�g�12C+./0�+>�8A)22�5++)?�/65�)2*6?8/82C268�+>�>400�026B8A�
*̀65+̀ ?h��(/)8*/0�)2C+./0�+>�E)*@a25�5++)�̀*8A�*6?2)8*+6�+>�̀*65+̀ h�N�6+L�̀*65+̀ ?�̀*8A�
)/*0*6B?�8+�E2�)2C+.25�/65�)2-0/@25�̀*8A�0/)B2)�̀*65+̀ ?�

b�G)+C-8+6�Q8)228D�P4)RD�PST�9,i�
MfS�W��X�YZ�[�]9N<9�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

()*+)�,--)+./0�K+8�1234*)25�g�HJ826?*+6�<=;9O;<9<=�

()*+)�/--)+./0�>+)�?*6B02�?8+)2R�)2/)�2J826?*+6�

<:�j-26?A/̀ �Q8)228D�(*CA+02D�P4)RD�PST�]Hd�
7(iH�W��X�YZ�[�]9N=\�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

������ !"�k�lmm�!nop�#$%&'�

,--)+.2�̀*8A�G+65*8*+6?�<\;9O;<9<=�

Q*6B02�?8+)2R�2J826?*+6�/8�>)+68�

<TO�d+)6ER�Q8)228D�P4)RD�PST�bi1�
MfS�W��X�YZ�[�]9<T9�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

,--)+.2�̀*8A�G+65*8*+6?�<=;9O;<9<=�

Q*6B02�?8+)2R�)2/)�2J826?*+6h�M)+68�-+)@A�

<T�G/66*6B�Q8)228D�P4)RD�PST�b,Q�
MfS�W��X�YZ�[�]9<T=�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

������ !"�k�qpor sp!�#$%&'�

,--)+.2�̀*8A�G+65*8*+6?�O:;9O;<9<=�

t/)*/8*+6�+>�@+65*8*+6�<�F/--)+.25�-0/6?I�+>�-0/66*6B�-2)C*??*+6�\:=\=u�M)+68�-+)@Ah�./)*+4?�
/082)/8*+6?�8+�̀*65+̀ ?�F>)+68D�?*52�/65�)2/)Ih�-*8@A25�)++>D�-/)/-28�̀/00�)/*?25h�/55*8*+6/0�
)2652)h�5+)C2)�@0/55*6B�/65�)2/)�5++)?�@A/6B25�8+�̀*65+̀ L�

T�P*)@A�S2/�G0+?2D�P4)RD�PST�T1v�
MfS�W��X�YZ�[�]99\=�W������	�
��̂
X[�

_
��	�
�[�

��
�
���[�

wxywzyzwz{�|$}~�������� Page 131



�������������	�
��������������������������������

�������������	�����������������	�������������������

��� �!	���"���#�$���#�$%���""�
&�"��'(()*+,(-.�������'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

�������!�� �;�����������<���������

���������!��	�=�������>��>	�����������?�����>���	������>#��	�������������������
!����!��������#�>	��������� �>�	����>>��#�������������������!���@	�>���	?���>	������
! 	> �����>>���@	������

$����;�		��A���@����;���#�B��C��D���#�$���#�$%���$&�
EF%�'(()*+,(-.�����G�'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

�������!�� �;�����������<���������

D���	�������������������

H����>���;	��#�$���#�$%���"I�
EF%�'(()*+,(-.���H���'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

�������J���������

D���	����������������������������	��	���������

���	@����"���#�$���#�$%����"�
EF%�'(()*+,(-.���H�J�'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

�������!�� �;�����������G���������

D���	��������������������> ���������

������C �		��;	��#�$���#�$%���K$�
EF%�'(()*+,(-.���HG<�'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

LMNOPQRSTPUPVWTXY�Z[\]̂�

%�!��	�"�	��?��������������

%�!��	���	��?���>�����>���������������@����	����������C��> ������_�̀����		�� ����� �� ��
!����!����C��> �������!�� �@��>C�@��� �!����!_�̀����		�������	����> ������@�!��
C��> ������	���������?�������������������!�		�����	����@����������̀�>�����������������
�������@�� ���?a�

G��b����@����;	��#�c���������#�$���#�$%J��A$�
%";��'(()*+,(-.����G��'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

�����������������

��>��������@��������!�		���		���������������������d?���?�?� �� ������a��Be�!�� ��!�
� �>�	����>>����������C�@�

��DC�����;	��#�$���#�$%J���f�
EF%�'(()*+,(-.���H���'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

�������!�� �;���������������������

c!��������������������

�G�g�?����"���#�$���#�$%J�����
EF%�'(()*+,(-.���H�G�'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

�������!�� �;���������������������

D���	�������������������

�<J�$����	� �	?�����#�$���#�$%J���h�
EF%�'(()*+,(-.���HH��'((/0123045*64).�

74123045.�

894(4:2/.�

LMNOPQRSTPUPQRST�Z[\]̂�

ijkilklilm�n[opqlqrsqt� Page 132



����������	
�����	����������������

�����	�����������	������������	���������������	�����������	��������������	
�������� ���

�!������ �������"�#�$"��#�$�%��&'�
()��*++,-./+01�2��3%�*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

&��"�������@������

A���	�������������"�����������

!2���
���	���B����#�$"��#�$�%���C�
()��*++,-./+01�2�����*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

&��"����2���������

B�� �����	��������	������	�D����������	������C�������	�����������	����������������� ��	����
����������

�@E��������	
�&��#�$"��#�$�%��CF�
()��*++,-./+01�2��%!�*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

����������	
�����	������%���������

C�������	�����������	����������	��������	���	��������������	�������	����G�

@��&�	
�"��������#�$"��#�$�%�����
()��*++,-./+01�2��E��*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

����������	
�����	�����@���@������

A���	��������	��
���"	�"��������������������	������  ��	���	�����#�H��"II���������J���
��� G�

3�%�$��	���&��#�$"��#�$�%��B)�
()��*++,-./+01�2�!@@�*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

KLMNOPQRSLM�TUVWX�

&��"�������@������

Y����������	��������������	
�(���	����&����B�� ����

����'���� ���&��#�&� ���		� #�$"��#�$���E)��
()��*++,-./+01�2�@3��*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

����������	
�����	����������������

Z��	����	�������������"����
��	��" ���	������

@%�Y��������������	#�&� ���		� #�$"��#�$���E[A�
()��*++,-./+01�2�@%��*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

����������	
�����	�����@%��@������

(���	���������	��������C�������	������������	��������C�������	�����������	�������

�
��	�\
����(�� #�&�������&��#�$"��#�$�E�3Y$�
()��*++,-./+01�2�����*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

����������	
�����	���������@������

�����	�����������	���������(�� �	�������������
��"�����������

3�������� ���&��#�&� ���		� #�$"��#�$�%��A]�
()��*++,-./+01�2��E!�*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

����������	
�����	������3��@������

�����	����������������	�������

@��Y��������������	#�&� ���		� #�$"��#�$���E[A�
()��*++,-./+01�2��E%�*++4567859:-;9,1�

<967859:1�

=>9+9?741�

_̂̂̀ àâab�cUdefgfhifj� Page 133



���������	��
����������������

���������	��
������������������
����
�
������������
���������������
�

�����
��
���� 
��!�"
�����
!�#���!�#�$��#��
��%&�'(()*+,(-.�/�0�$�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=���
	�����>�%
����
��0����������

?�������
��������������������
�

0��#�

@�����%������!�"
�����
!�#���!�#�$��#A�
BC��'(()*+,(-.�/�0�$�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

DEFGHIJKLMNMOPQREPPS�TUVWX�

=���
	�����>�%
����
���0���������

"�
���
���������������
�

��"���
�A�
	�!�Y>��������!�Z��>�����!�Z���["\�
BC��'(()*+,(-.�/�����'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=���
	�����>�%
����
���/���������

?�������
������
��������
]���������
����������
�����
���	��
����������̂�

$��?�����������!�&�������>!�Z��>�����!�Z����?C�
BC��'(()*+,(-.�/�0�$�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

DEFGHIJKLMNM_FS̀QFR�TUVWX�

=���
	�����>�%
����
�������������

B�������

�������������
��������>����

���
�����������������
����������
��������������

$�?�����>���A����!�&�������>!�Z��>�����!�Z����#a�
BC��'(()*+,(-.�/��0��'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

���������	��
����������������

���������	��
������������������
����
�
�����>�����
��>����������	���
�
���>����������
�	
�	����>�������������
���������b��

�����
��
��������>���B���>����
��
��������
���
��������������������̂�

��� �������?�����!�&�������>!�Z��>�����!�Z����cd�
��%&�'(()*+,(-.�/��[0�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=���
	�����>�%
����
���/���������

?�������
���������������
�

����#����e��� 
��!�&�������>!�Z��>�����!�Z����\B�
BC��'(()*+,(-.�/��$��'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=���
	�����>�%
����
���[���������

"�
���������
����������
�������������]�B�
���
��>�������
]��
����
	����
����>������
�
����]�Y>�����������
��������	���
��

���Y���
�� 
��!�&�������>!�Z��>�����!�Z����BB�
BC��'(()*+,(-.�/�0���'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=���
	�����>�%
����
���[���������

"�
���
���������������
������������
����������
�������������!���
���
��>�����
���
�
	����
����>�������
��������>����
��������

��������
��
��
������
����

�]�#
������
��������������
���
���������̂�

/��?>����

�����!�&�������>!�Z��>�����!�Z�����"�
BC��'(()*+,(-.�/�0[0�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

fghfihifij�kUlmnjnopnq� Page 134



���������	
	��	������������

������������� �!"����!#�$%&$'&'$'(�

)���#����*���+���,��!#��!�����!-./"��'�!�0���!"��#������+���.��+���!�+!"�1�!�0���!"������
�,�#��!2�#�"���.��+���!������!���.�!3�����*"������+�*����.�4/�."�!2�+!"�-�+!2�!2����5�
6+-�.����#7�8,���!+.����3#����+"+��������,�#��!2�"�����+*����6��5�+--�##�4.��"�����+*�6���
+"+���"�����-.�7�9���+���-�!"����!�!2�/!����!#�+..�"�+���+�+�����+..�.���.����������+���.��+���!�

8+#���.5�:�;���!!#�<�+":�=��#���-�:�>+!-��#���:�>'?�@AB�
CDA�EFFGHIJFKL�%$M$(�EFFNOPQROSTHUSGL�

VSPQROSTL�

WXSFSYQNL�

������������� �!"����!#�$Z&$'&'$'(�

)���#����*&#�!2.��#����*���+���,��!#��!������6�!-�"�4+.-�!*7�C��!�����-�������+##�-�+��"�#���#�

?@��2�-��6��<�+"�8+#�:�=��#���-�:�>+!-��#���:�>'?�@<[�
CDA�EFFGHIJFKL�%$M'Z�EFFNOPQROSTHUSGL�

VSPQROSTL�

WXSFSYQNL�

\]�̂�__�	
	̀���������

<�6/#�"�1@&$1&'$'(�

 �+!2���6�/#��6��5�6��5���#������5&���3#�������M?�!�0�4�"���5�a"�/4.���--/�+!-*b�
4/�."�!2��6�5/.���.����#�"�!��+.��--/�+���!�a;/��c�!���#b�

%ded$:� �/�-��;������f�#�:�<+"-.�66�:�>'Z�';g�
CDA�EFFGHIJFKL�%$1$'�EFFNOPQROSTHUSGL�

VSPQROSTL�

WXSFSYQNL�

\]�̂�__�	
	hi���	j]	k�j��i����������

������������� �!"����!#�$%&$'&'$'(�

 �!���#��!��6�#��55�!2����.�4/�."�!2�+����+�����6+5�.*�+!!�,��

?M� �-3�*�>����<�+":���!#�����:�l�.��!:�lA'�?<8�
CDA�EFFGHIJFKL�%$Md?�EFFNOPQROSTHUSGL�

VSPQROSTL�

WXSFSYQNL�

\]�̂�__�	
	m����������

��������$%&$'&'$'(�

���.�-+���!�6������5�##��!��!����!-��.��6�����#�"�!��+.�"���.��5�!���6�/�����%�!�0�"��..�!2#�

��!#������<�+"�c+�+2�:�(���!#������<�+":�<+"-.�66�:�>+!-��#���:�>'Z�(Bn�
=o=�EFFGHIJFKL�%$MZ(�EFFNOPQROSTHUSGL�

VSPQROSTL�

WXSFSYQNL�

\p�qi��ip	r	si���jt�ij	
	si���jt�ij�������

������������� �!"����!#�''&$1&'$'(�

;�!2.��#����*��,��!#��!�+����+��

d�l��-����"� �/��:�)����!2��!:�l/�*:�lAd�Mu8�
CDA�EFFGHIJFKL�%$MM1�EFFNOPQROSTHUSGL�

VSPQROSTL�

WXSFSYQNL�

\p�qi��ip	j]	si���jt�ij	
	\p�qi��ip�������

������������� �!"����!#�1d&$1&'$'(�

 �!���#��!��6�1!�0�"��..�!2�+!"����3#�������'!�0�6.+�#�+!"�M!�0�"��..�!2#������#�!2.��#����*�
��+���,��!#��!#:�!������6�������+�#�"��+��#�+!"����.+-�5�!����!"��#0�

)���;5���*�+!"�1$e1(�=+�+"�#��;�����:�<+5#4����5:�l/�*:�lA$�@l;�
CDA�EFFGHIJFKL�Z@@@Z�EFFNOPQROSTHUSGL�

VSPQROSTL�

WXSFSYQNL�

vwxvyxyvyz�{�|}~�~��~�� Page 135



����������	
�����	����������������

���	����	������������������
��	�������	������

����
��
��������	��������		���� ��!�� "��� "�
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-�����%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

����������	
�����	����������������

:���	�����������;�������<��������<��������==� ��!�>���������	
��������	�����?��<�

==� ��!�>��������������		���� ��!�� "��� @�
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-���A�%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

����������	
�����	����������������

B�����	��������C��	��<�<���<���������	����������<����	���!������C	�������

=�B��	����������������		���� ��!�� "��=DE�
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-���F�%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

����������	
�����	������-���������

G����	���!��C	������H�>�����	�
�������	���C��	��<�������<����:C	���������?��!����
�	��������

�DI�J��	��K����!����<��L��!���D	���	��������		���� "���� �
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-���-�%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

����������	
�����	������-���������

M����	�����������	����������������<������������F��-��N��������������	���������	�
�<�����	�������	������<��	������	��F���;�������<�OP�"��������<��
��<���	�����������	�������
<��������������������	����������?��<����	�������Q����	���������������������	�	������
�����;�

 ��	�R������I���
��	��������������		���� ��!�� "=�A"@�
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-���=�%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

������������������

�
��<���������������	���������	���C	���������	�������	���<��<������������	��������	��
��
������<���<��

I�����		���#�����I�����		��������������		���� ��!�� "���>S�
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-�����%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

����������	
�����	������F���������

D��<����	���!�������C	�������

-�S������	����������������		���� ��!�� "��=T>�
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-��AA�%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

����������	
�����	������=���������

����;����U��������	����<��

���� ��	���D	���	��������		���� ��!�� "��=V:�
�BM�%&&'()*&+,�-��--�%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

����������	
�����	������=���������

:C	��������������������	
���C��	��<�<���<��	�����������������	���<������H�I������	�����	��
�C��	��<�����	������	����	����������������������������?������<���������������	���	
���	�����
��������	�����	����������������	�����	���
����	����������	
������?�������H�����������	�
�����	���������!��	����H�����	�����������<���������������	
���C��	��<�������!��	�����	�

������������������?���������		���� ��!�� "��=RR�
#$"�%&&'()*&+,�-���F�%&&./012/34(53',�

63012/34,�

783&391.,�

WXYZ[\Y[]̂_̀_abcdefZX_g_h[cc[c�ijklm�

nopnqpqnqr�sjtuvwvxyvz� Page 136



�

����������	
�����	����������������

�����	�������	��������	����������

����������������
�	������� ��!
��	���� ���"#��
$%&�'(()*+,(-.�/�����'((01234156*75).�

85234156.�

9:5(5;30.�

<=>?@A>@BCDEDFGHIJK?=DLDM>BN>GO?JGDMPKN�QRSTU�

����������	
�����	�����V����������

W��X����	���������	�Y��������	�������Z�&��	�!������������	
�����������Z���������������X���X��
	�������X��!!�����	����

V�&��[\�����������
�	������� ��!
��	���� ���/%#�
$%&�'(()*+,(-.�/��]��'((01234156*75).�

85234156.�

9:5(5;30.�

����������	
�����	������̂ ���������

_�����	�����������	��X�������X�������!	�����������̀�������X�

V�W\����X��������\����
�	������� ��!
��	���� ���/a��
$%&�'(()*+,(-.�/�����'((01234156*75).�

85234156.�

9:5(5;30.�

����������	
�����	������/���������

�����	������������	���������	
�b\���		��[��!���������X����	����������������	�������������!
�
��	��������	�����

/"����X����������
�	������� ��!
��	���� ���/&c�
$%&�'(()*+,(-.�/��"��'((01234156*75).�

85234156.�

9:5(5;30.�

����������	
�����	������/���������

W��X����	�������	��������	�������������	��X�!
��X��X�������������!	����������!
Z��
���\�[��
���	��������	��X��!���[����[\����X���!�\��X���	��������	���	������������	���!��
���!
�������[����!!����	�����������	����	��������[����[��������	��[����!d��X�	��
����������!	�	����������������	����!�\[
�\��̀�

W	������!d�	�������������\[��e����	���������
�	������� ��!
��	���� ���/�$�
$%&�'(()*+,(-.�/��̂ ]�'((01234156*75).�

85234156.�

9:5(5;30.�

����������	
�����	����������������

a���X��!����������

������X�����
������
�	������� ��!
��	���� ���/%��
$%&�'(()*+,(-.�/�V���'((01234156*75).�

85234156.�

9:5(5;30.�

DfgD�hJ?PBDijkl@KDJADmnnB>oP?>JGHDp@o>C@Cq�

rstruturuv�wRxyz{z|}z{� Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��������������������������

�
���	�

�
�����������������

�
�������	�

�
��������������

�
�����������	�

�
����������������������������

�
��������������	�

�
����������

� �

�
� ��������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
����������!�����	�

"#$%
&'&()
$%
*$+#$,
+#(
&-./$0
123'$,




�
����� 	�

�
4/',,$,5
6&&('/%7























89:215(1





















89;(+()3$,(1




















<,=2)0(3(,+
6&&('/%

89:215(1
























89;(+()3$,(1



















�
��������>�
�������������������



"#(
?233$++((
$%
)(0233(,1(1
+2
+#(
,2+(
+#(
)(&2)+

',1
'&&(,1$0(%


�
�����������	�

�

�
�@�A@��B��CDE!�@FCG��
���D�H@�I	�



;2
+#(
&)2&2%'/%
'002)1
*$+#
+#(
42/$0J

K)'3(*2)LM

 N(%
 
 


�B�B�D�OB����BP���QRQ��SSCG��	�
�CO�OGC�F��DAFCG�BC@OE��OT��CEI�
�@OECT���BC@OE	�



<U(0-+$V(
;$)(0+2)
2=
W(%2-)0(%
+2
'1V$%(

)(5')1$,5
)$%L
3','5(3(,+


�
�B�B�D�OB�����X�G�BCY���C��GB@��
@S���E@��G�E	�

�
Z[6

�

�
�\��FCB�!�CY��ECB��CDAFCG�BC@OE	�



Z2
 





�
�@OECT���T�����@OCB@�CO]��SSCG��	�



_̂̀

�
�

� �

]�OT��
�B�D�

9

������������������
a


Page 139

Agenda Item 6



����������	
���� ��������

�
�	��
������
����
��
�

�
����

�
������ !"#�$�%���� � &��%��$���
�

'(��)�*+�,-��.���
/�01��2�,�3�1��0�(�4�

5�16�

*+�,-��.��
7�68�0�'(1�0�

910��7�68�0�� :10�;�0��

�
�

� � �

/,0-��;<�'=66������ '=66������ '=-;,�� �

�
�

� � �

� � � �

�
>?@� A���!�$B &�
�
5(������1�6=;�(<�0�4=0���=��(��'=66������=)��(��:1;;�;2��44�1��=�2���121�;���
��,���=;��=)��(��1-�(=0��<�1;��121�;���*;)=0,�6�;���=��,�����0.���1;���(=����(1��
(1.��8��;��-8��C-�;�<�����06�;���8<��(��:1;;�;2�D;�4�,�=01��E��
�
���1,(����=��(��0�4=0��10���(��D;�4�,�=0��F�,���=;��1;��1�.�081�0�4=0��G��8��
40���;�����=��(��'=66������=;��(���64�,1��=;��=)��(����,���=;��=;��(���44�1���(1��
G�0��-4(��E�
�
H?@� �$ �IB��$ ��
�
5(1���(�����6�8��;=���E�
�

�
I��
�J��A�	KL�J����#�M����N��
�
�J�
�	
�&�
��O��N�
F1.���710;=P�Q�1��=)�F�.�=46�;��71;12�6�;��
:1;;�;2�/�0.�,��P�F�410�6�;��)=0�R��=-0,���1;��R�2-1��=;P�
S�T;=G��<�:1,��PU-0<�����U3V�W*X�
��O��@>Y>�HZ[�ZH\>��
%]��O���?]���Ĵ _���?LJ̀ ?�K�

Page 140



������������	��
����	��
��	��		���������������������������

�����
���

��������� !�"# $%�����& '"�()��* +%�(& ,�-)��*& .%��/0��%0& '1"2& '34 563���7������

8%(/9/:��/%0) �% "%%9;9/")� 9-%%" "%%9 �<��0)/%0 �% �::%##%(��� �((/�/%0�- -/=/0� 
)��:� �% 9/")� 9-%%"> 6%":� �% 9"%0� �-�=��/%0> +�(1:�/%0 /0 )/?� %9 �</)�/0� ��"���> 
@<��"0�- �-��"��/%0) �% /0:-1(� )%-�" ��0�-) �% 9"%0�;"��" "%%9 )-%��)& 0�* 
)�%0�;"�0(�" 9/0/)� �% �<��""0�- �-�=��/%0) �0( �-��"��/%0) �% (%%");*/0(%*);�-�?/0� 
*/�� A 0%B C1-/�� D�-:%0/�) �% "��" �-�=��/%0�

�����7���E�

���	������	E�FFGHIGFHFJ��

8" K/�-- L100�

M	7�
�����	N	�E�OPQ�

R	7�SS	�	�M	7�
���E�TUVWXU�
���	���YZ�	E�[\]̂̂U_�TÙ\UXU_̂â]b_X�

�����7������c�dE�efghIGijQ�

�����
���

k5l �/#/)��" 3�0�& 6"�)�*/:�& 8�0:��)��"& 8Am A�n���7������

!/")� 9-%%" )/(� �<��0)/%0> ��"��� :%0=�")/%0 �% ��D/��D-� )��:�> "�/)� "%%9 "/(�� 
��/���& -%9� :%0=�")/%0 */�� "��" (%"#�")> 9"%0� �%":�> �-�:�"/: ���� %0 9"%0� 
D%10(�"2 �0( �-�=��/%0�- :��0��) �% �</)�/0� 9�:�(�;*/0(%*)�

�����7���E�

���	������	E�FJGHIGFHFJ��

8" $�"/) 6"�)��

M	7�
�����	N	�E�OPQ�

R	7�SS	�	�M	7�
���E�TUVWXU�
���	���YZ�	E�[\]̂̂U_�TÙ\UXU_̂â]b_X�

�����7������c�dE�effFoGijQ�

�����
���

mp ,/0()%" +%�(& 6"�)�*/:�& 8�0:��)��"& 8Am qr@���7������

3%9� :%0=�")/%0 */�� "��" (%"#�" �<��0)/%0> .*% )�%"�2 �<��0)/%0 �� )/(�> l((/�/%0 
%9 9/")� 9-%%" */0(%* �% )/(� �-�=��/%0> .*% )�%"�2 �<��0)/%0 �� "��" */�� �#�0(#�0� 
�% D�-:%02> K�* :-�((/0� �% 9"%0� �-�=��/%0> s0)��--��/%0 %9 A =�0�/-��/%0 #�:��0/:�- 
/0��t� �<�"�:� 10/�) �% )/(� �-�=��/%0�

�����7���E�

���	������	E�HgGHFGFHFJ��

8" +�C �/0���

M	7�
�����	N	�E�OPQ�

R	7�SS	�	�M	7�
���E�TUVWXU�
���	���YZ�	E�[\]̂̂U_�TÙ\UXU_̂â]b_X�

�����7������c�dE�effueGijQ�

�����
���

vvl K�*:%#D� +%�(& +�#)D%��%#& '1"2& '3q wn.���7������

6"%�%)�( 3%9� $%0=�")/%0 */�� !"%0� �0( +��" r%"#�")�

�����7���E�

���	������	E�FfGHIGFHFJ��

8" �0( 8") ,�-t�"�

M	7�
�����	N	�E�OPQ�

R	7�SS	�	�M	7�
���E�TUVWXU�
���	���YZ�	E�[\]̂̂U_�TÙ\UXU_̂â]b_X�

�����7������c�dE�uHIgJGijQ�

Page 141



�

���������

�	�
���������������������������������

��� ��!"#���$"�!�#���"�����"#�%#�&�	��#'� �#��(�%�##��%��"�

)��������*�

)��+��,��-.+-*,/01/010/02,�

3���4#""�5#�!�

6+������,�+7+�*,89:�

;+��<<+�-+-,6+������*,=>?@A>�
)��+��,BC�+*,DEFGG>H�=>IE>A>HGJGFKHA�

)����������,L�M*,N/0OP1QR:�

B����,LS<T+�,�U,)��+���,��-.+-*,V�

Page 142



�
����������		
�����
��
���

��
��

����������������������������

����������

 !"#$#%&�'(&)*+#�,!+-.*//#�0!..�1�'/�2�3#&4'+*)&� 5*$!56�7-4''.8�9(56�7&5##&8�
,!+-.*//#8�3:;�:<9�

=�>�?@�A��

 5*'5�!BB5'"!.�/'5�B5'B')#+�C<�&#.#-'$)�*%)&!..!&*'%D�0E<�FC$�)&5##&�B'.#�!%+�
!++*&*'%!.�#G(*B$#%&�-!H*%#&)�

I���@>�A?��

���
J�::KLFK:L:M�

1N�0(&-4*)'%�O#&P'5Q)�RSNT�U&+�

�
���V���
W
�J�X2U�
Y
VZZ
��
���
���V�J� 5*'5�[BB5'"!.�,#G(*5#+�
!%+�,#/()#+�

�		
����\	
J�]5*&&#%�,#B5#)#%&!&*'%)�

�		�����V��̂V_J�;̀ EE;Ka2U� �		
����
���V�J�X*)$*))#+�

Page 143



��

�
������������	
�����������	��������
�����

�
�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%�&���#'���()(*��
+,�-���.��/0�1��23 !�4���567�8.���89�8657:�

�!�:!����; /���� �!;�<�+,�;=��9��/�;�/,� >�9;�;���

������ !�<�;�?�@@�-�!A�/,�@B@C�

�
�������6�>?��77D5C@EBDFD@GDGG@@HHB�
1A/,�9;/��;�F /0�I�1A/,�9;/��;I�1A/,�8@J�@K1��
LM N�������������#�$����$��������
��OP�
Q�����N
�����$�R
����S�T������	�U���VWW)�
�	����������Q������
�	���������
������X����$���$���U�������*YVZ���$�"���$����([�T����V\[�
R�����U�
Q�����N
�����$�R
����S�T������	�Y]�������T��#����$�&����
�#���Z�Ŷ�	���$Z�
_�$���()V%�Y����#��$�$Z���

LM N�������������#�$��'S�R

��
Q�R̀ �a������
��b���
���Yc̀ Z�d�$��	����������$�����
��
Q�
e��S�f���
�
������e
�
�	��R
�������

LM N������������
��g�Q�\W**\[�$���$�P�h�'����S�()(*[�������Q���$�'S��
�����$���$��
V%�f�����()(*���

LM N���$����
�#������
�
��$����$�����'�$������
�
��$�%]������
#������������
���a*]�V%#�
��������
�����$��$$���
�����X���#������'�������

������ !�

V�MN�������������$��#����$��

7/���i�!�/,�8�;;�/��

(�MN�����
����
���
Q�����N
�����$�R
����S�T������	�Y]�������T��#����$�
&����
�#���Z�Ŷ�	���$Z�_�$���()V%�����#��$�$[���$���U�������*YVZ���$�
"���$����([�T����V\[�R�����U[�T���	�����U�*YjZ���X���������d
����T������	�
U���
���S��
��������������
�
��$�$����
�#�����
���S�
������'�����
Q����������	�
��$�����������[�����	����
����
������S�������������
����������$��fS�
$����#�����
��
Q�����������������'����#�$��
��������#��'������

*�MN���������
���X����#�����
��������	��$��
�����$����
�#������������������
�
��$�'��Q
����S�$����
�#������X�����	��������	����#����
���b�����������[�
T
�������̂bV�(���$�̂bV�V)�
Q�����e��S�c�����S�&����
�#����T���V�����#��������
�
���$�����
���������S���������
��������
Q������	���$���������������

j�MN���b���
����T������	�T
���S�h��#��
��Y����h��#��
�Z�����������$�
��VW�
&���#'���()(*���$���$���$�
��()�&���#'���()(*��a
�����[������������
�
#������������	����������������
��
��������$��������������
�������'�������
Q������
��������N���h��#��
�������#���������
���$�����
�������$��	����������
��
��
����
����	���	��X�����S��
##�������
����

8��!�:��A���

%�MN���#��������������������QQ����
Q����������	���$������������
Q�������
�
��$�
����������
��
������������������$������������
Q���������
��$��	�����[����������	�
�
�$���
���
Q�����
���������
Q�����
��$��	�����$���������
��������$����
�
���

�
��$[��Q���S����#��
��$�
����[�����������������
�����	��$�'S��������$�Q
������

�
V�e��S�c�����S�&����
�#����T����k�l�������"����#����U$
���$�'S�e��S�f���
�
������e
�
�	��R
������(W�U�	����
VWWO��

Page 144



�����������	�
��������������������

�

�
����	������
���������������	����
 �������������������������������

��	�������
���
�!��	���"��	�� 
�
	�"�����������
����
������#�	����!���
���� ������	��

$%&'()'*

+�,����� 
�
	�"���	�������
���
��"�!���
����"������������ ���
-�����.����
�"/�������
����� ��� ���
�0�"���--��1����2�
-�3�4���
"�	��� �.� #�5��

������ ��
� ���
�	�	�
������
��
	����	�"��
-�6� #�5� ������"���	.��������"��	��� ��	�
--�
6� #�5� �����
������
 ���
-������������	�����
�	� ���6����#�0
����������	
�
�
.� �	�	� �	�"�������� 
�� ���	���

7�,��� ���	�	�������-
 �����	��

�8�	� ���������������"�� ��	������������	�  
��"����
� ��������"������
�.
"�	��	�9�"�� ��	��
�����	
������	��
-������������	������"�
� ��	������� �		�"�� ����
������
 �����	��
-������������	������
����������!�	�
	�
������	�� !���� ����	���� ���� �	�"�!#���	� �	�"�������� 
�� ���	��
��
�:���"������
�	�
 ��	�������������"�����	��

���	���
�����"���
�	�
 �#�
!���"�������������.�����	��
�����!�#���"����"������ �		��� ���	.������"��������

-�
!	�����	������������
�� �!�����
�����
�����		�
-����	�� !���	��������

;�,<�������
���:��
-������
��	�����
-�����	�  
��"����!���"���	���"�����
����
����� �����
-�����	��

���� ��� �8������ 
�
	�"��=�.�� ��������
����
��"�!��
�� #���� �	������"�� 
.�����������������	� ����	������4
 �
�� 8�������� !#�
� ��	�� ���
��	�--�������#���
	���
������������	�����
�� 
��"����#�	�!	��������
	� ���������"���������������
��.�	�� ���
���	�������#�������
����!�������
� 
�
	�"��
����
�!���"��������������:������	� ����-� ���� ��������>���.����
��!��	���"��
����
��"������ ������� �"����������������.�����
.�� �"��������	�
��  ������������ �"������ �������

��,?� ��� .
 �8�����
������ 	�
-�������� !#��
�	�	8��	�������#���
	��
������

��
	����	�"��
-�6� #�5� ���8��
��"��

��"� ����#����������	�������
��- 
.����� �
- 
������"
�	�������=�.�� ��������
�������� ������ 8��
��"�!����	����#���� �	����
"����
���	����������"�� 
:�.��#���"���� �-
 ����������� .-����--����
������ �

���

������������	�"
.�	�������� 
�.�����

���,����� 
�
	����	� �>�� �"��
��:���"�=@�.�	����- �	� ���� ����"���������������
�:�����	������������	�����	� �>�� �"��
�.���������AABCCDEFGHIJABKDFLJEDCI
 �>�� �.���	��
�� 
��"��.�������"�"��
�� ����������	�"��	��#��
������"�� ����
4
 �
�� 8��� �� ��������
-�����? �.��
 ��.���	����� ���������"�-
 �
����� 
�����
..�������
�	�	#	��.	�	�
��"��
��!��>��	��
��"�����������"�"�
�� ���	�� ���� �����	��� �"��	�
-���� 
:�.����#�����.�� �	����� �"�
��6� #�
5� ���������	��
-����� �������	���	�� �������"�"��������	�!.�		�
���
����� ��������
������"����-#�������� ��
����
����

���,1
���� 8����	�������!����"�	�
����"�-
 � ��	
�	� ���������
������ ���!�����
�� #� �	�"�������
 �-
 ����������� ��	
�	� ���������
������ �����������	�
-����� �
��	�������
������� ��� "��
���	�--�������
 ���	����!�������.���	���"���	�!����#�
	���#	��<��
������������2
��������	� �-�  �"��
������ !#������!
� �

"�
	�
���������� ����� ����� ��� ��	��� ����
..� �������"���"�	� ����!���"���	�
�������
��"�!���	�"�-
 �������	�������
��
-��>���.�����1
���� 8�����
��������
	�>����������� 
��������	�� �
 ��#��
��:�	�����	���	���"�.�	��	�� ���8���� ���	�
�
���-
 .���
��!�-
 ��.���	��
���#�FMBINJOEPLCGHIHOQQBHFLJEIMDHIRBBEI
"�	�
����"���

���,<���� ���������������	�	���.��� 
�
	�	�������� ��������
���� ���
�	� �-�	���-
 �
����;�.�� ��������
���!���- 
.�������-
 .���
��	�!.����"8������ ���
�	�

Page 145



�����������	�
��������������������

�

�
����	������
���������������	����
 �������������������������������

	���!����	�
������	�!��	�����	�����
���"�#
 ��!���
������ �#
 �$�����	��%�
��� ����������������� ����	����� ���&�'��	��&��
������'$�%��!��
���
������'�
���������		���	����&���� �	�����
����
���
��'��
��"��#
��'��������������'� �� "���
� ���������
��'�!�����������())*+,-./0(1230(4(+,.5�

���67
�	�8�����&$������ 
�
	�'���	�������
���
��'���������� !#����##����
������
��� ���� ���'������ �����
#�����	�  
��'����� ���'����
���	�	��������'�
����� �������'�
��������������
�'���
�	�
#�����
������ 	�
#�	�  
��'����
 �	�'�������� 
�� ���	�'����
�
���

����'�%��!��
���
������'��������		��� !#���
*),(0+*,39(./:*;*<)(/=>/>2)>3))3+?/,@(/*;;())*+,-./0(1230(4(+,./:=2)A/+=,/<(/
#
��'��

BCDEFGHICCEFJG

���6K/*;;0(:3*,(/,@(/*;;())*+,-./=<L(:,39(./,=/>=))=M/N=9(0+4(+,/:=443,4(+,/,=/
�!� 
����������	���'�OP�!
"�����
���������&���'�������
�
!�����'�	
�����
"���#��	�������
��'�� �	��# 
!����	��Q
���� $����	��!���� 	�������
��"����
���������
����
��������
�	�'� ��������!���� 	�
#�	��������'������ ������

RSTUVWJXSTG

�O�6Y
 ����� ��	
�	��������"
���%��
����'������������������	�
��'�"��'�	!�		�'��

Z[\[]̂_̀a[[

%bc�d7�ef�

Page 146



�

��������	
������
	������������������	�����
�

�
�

�����������������������������������

�� !�"#$$%�&�$'(�)�*+�,%�-./0%�-�1�234�

56�.7(+/#'!,�8.#$,#69�)+/ '�

:2;:2;<:<=������	
�������>�

�	����	�>�

?��@�>�

�������AB��>� *C3�

D����E�
>� :21F�;�<F�

A	�����@�����	
��������D����>����

GHIJKLKMNKL�OHPJKMNKQJRMSPKTKUVWUXWXUXY�Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 23rd January 2024
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Item 1
	0932f786-beb5-4474-bca0-4d075b9277dd.pdf
	8934252c-38d1-4008-a66f-c9a06bc60d1e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	547 - 402G Pr Ground Floor & Site Plan


	a015cf0e-a082-439d-892b-62ce87b994ac.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	547 - 403G Pr Elevations


	58f9d54d-fcf7-4167-af21-12c8d13a53c5.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	547 - 404D Pr Fence Elevation & Bin Store




	Item 2
	bb4e715a-e5b4-45d7-bcda-1775d6fafe19.pdf
	9986cab9-b20a-447d-bd06-5e1ad1de39a2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	bc0aa9e2-9086-4366-9320-da844b770e02.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	3c31cbc2-92cb-4d75-8935-d7e6b2b24193.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	cdb85f1b-f9d5-42d4-9252-115184ef3594.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	7caed35e-5ccd-4c6b-ab41-697ccb038e13.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	e733eaeb-9ac6-4468-86ab-c6e86355e39d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	20086230-879e-4094-9956-af4941879f07.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model




	Item 3
	45873290-13f9-4407-be61-c9012324e565.pdf
	93f0c769-e870-431e-8042-7c3108e33b49.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	01 Existing


	344db50a-c84d-406b-856b-9cc9a6ee112e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	03 site plan proposed


	e1d847d8-9b74-40af-98a0-dfc578ce1959.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	02 proposals




	Item 4
	Item 5
	99feb6b4-5445-46d4-bed1-eb9befc33584.pdf
	a1939486-4c3c-4d51-8b84-d6e29c86a79d.pdf
	Sheets
	401 - WH1 - Heys Road, M25 1JY


	718b049a-c5e0-4a81-9b08-274f70263890.pdf
	Sheets
	402 - WH2 - Heys Road, M25 1JY


	97ddd65d-5eaa-4a5d-a5de-5779df35f32f.pdf
	Sheets
	403 - WH3 - Fairfax Road, M25 3AY


	ed2bb1c3-6aab-4f4e-969e-2d3479f1fb96.pdf
	Sheets
	404 - WH4 - Willow Road, M25 3DZ


	8905888e-3004-41a7-8cf0-0fbd29b5c51b.pdf
	Sheets
	405 - WH5 - Sandgate Road, M45 6NT


	12b9b8c0-3d7f-4ffc-b252-583cfbbb52c8.pdf
	Sheets
	406 - WH6 - Sandgate Road, M45 6NT


	aebc53ef-eb84-4958-8932-afb754f95041.pdf
	Sheets
	407 - WH7 - Sandagte Road, M45 6NT


	29255362-9eb4-463b-8abe-1a50e375b9c6.pdf
	Sheets
	408 - WH8 - 317 Heywood Road, M25 2RF


	1f15c8fd-ea7f-4e4e-b06d-b0c7b84d95f0.pdf
	Sheets
	409 - WH9 - St Margarets Road, M25 2GT




	Item 6
	afd738c3-b850-4130-bb89-1f6c2c08ad7a.pdf
	8981bcb7-06c2-43d1-ad15-7d72ca2f71ec.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Site


	326c0b00-a5ef-4f66-b4ea-60bc881ae953.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prop Site


	71cf2fbb-afea-490c-b248-81fb8ab70fe5.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Existing Elevations


	7bea3c64-d1c5-4296-bba7-2744e2b34ebb.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prop Elevations option 2




	Item 7

	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

